
City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, July 29, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.     (a)    The purpose of this Hearing is to consider
certain bylaws which, if adopted, shall amend Kelowna
2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000.

(b)   All persons who believe that their interest in property
is affected by the proposed bylaws shall be afforded a
reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written
submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws
that are the subject of this hearing.  This Hearing is open to
the public and all representations to Council form part of
the public record.  A live audio feed may be broadcast and
recorded by Castanet.

(c)   All information, correspondence, petitions or reports
that have been received concerning the subject bylaws
have been made available to the public.  The
correspondence and petitions received after July 15,
2014 (date of notification) are available for inspection
during the course of this hearing and are located on the
information table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)   Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled
to take place during the Regular Council meeting after the
conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted, however,
that for some items a final decision may not be able to be
reached tonight.

1



(e)   It must be emphasized that Council will not receive
any representation from the applicant or members of the
public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the
Hearing was publicized.

3. Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 Bylaw No. 10979 (Z14-0019) - 260 Ponto Avenue,
Alexander Ryan Tull

5 - 18

To consider a rezoning application from RU1 -
Large Lot Housing zone to RM1 - Four Dwelling
Housing zone in order to allow a fourplex to be
built on the subject property.

3.2 Bylaw No. 10986 (TA14-0007) - Amendments to
Carriage House and Accessory Building Regulations

19 - 26

To improve bylaw regulations for carriage houses
and accessory buildings as per Council's direction
to staff on March 17, 2014.  Staff was tasked with
improving the bylaw regulations for carriage house
and dormer regulations.

3.3 Bylaw No. 10875 (OCP11-0011), Bylaw No. 10876
(TA11-0010) and Bylaw No. 10877 (Z11-0069) - 2755
McCurdy Road, PRODEV GP Ltd. & 1378310 Alberta
Ltd.

27 - 91

To amend the Official Community Plan and Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000 to allow for the development of
343 multi-unit residential dwelling units, including
17 units of purpose-built rental housing, in a mix of
row housing and low-rise apartment housing forms
on the subject parcel.

3.4 Bylaw No. 10984 (Z13-0030) - (S of), 823 & 890-950
Academy Way, Watermark Developments Ltd., City
of Kelowna & Aberdeen Hall Senior School Society

92 - 99

To rezone portions of the subject properties in
order to accomodate the future development of
single and multi-family developments and a large
natural open space park.

3.5 Bylaw No. (OCP14-0014) and Bylaw No. 10981
(TA14-0010) - Various addresses in the Hospital

100 - 129

2



Area, City of Kelowna

To consider a proposal to change the Official
Community Plan Future Land Use designations for
select properties to the north and south of the
Kelowna General Hospital campus to create a
Health Services Transitional designation.  To
accompany this designation, it is proposed to
introduce a Health District 3 - Health Services
Transitional zone in order to allow low-impact,
health service uses to create a transitional area
between Kelowna General Hospital and the
established residential neighbourhoods in the
surrounding area.

4. Termination

5. Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a)     Brief description of the application by City Staff
(Land Use Management);

(b)     The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate
all information, correspondence, petitions or reports
received for the record.

(c)     The applicant is requested to make representation
to Council regarding the project and is encouraged to
limit their presentation to 15 minutes.

(d)     The Chair will call for representation from the
public in attendance as follows:

    (i)     The microphone at the public podium has been
provided for any person(s) wishing to make
representation at the Hearing.

     (ii)     The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the
podium.

     (iii)     Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks
to 5 minutes, however, if they have additional
information they may address Council again after all
other members of the public have been heard a first
time.

(e)     Once the public has had an opportunity to
comment, the applicant is given an opportunity to

3



respond to any questions raised.  The applicant is
requested to keep the response to a total of 10 minutes
maximum.

(f)     Questions by staff by members of Council must be
asked before the Public Hearing is closed and not during
debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless for
clarification.

(g)     Final calls for respresentation (ask three times). 
Unless Council directs that the Public Hearing on the
bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall state to
the gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

Note:  Any applicant or member of the public may use
visual aids (e.g. photographs, sketches, slideshows, etc.)
to assist in their presentation or questions.  The computer
and ELMO document camera at the public podium are
available.  Please ask staff for assistance prior to your
item if required.

4



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 5/15/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: Z14-0019 Owner: Alexander Ryan Tull  

Address: 260 Ponto Avenue Applicant: Alexander Ryan Tull 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Rezoning Application No. Z14-0019 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 17, Section 26, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 4414, located 
on 260 Ponto Avenue, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RM1 – Four 
Dwelling Housing zone be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be subsequent to the requirements 
Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction; 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be subsequent to approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure.  

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a rezoning application from RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to RM1 – Four Dwelling 
Housing in order to allow a fourplex to be built on the subject property. 

3.0 Urban planning 

Staff are supportive of the proposed rezoning to allow a fourplex on the subject property as it is 
consistent with the Official Community Plan (OCP) Future Land Use designation for the area. The 
subject property is surrounded by RU1 zoned single family homes however it is located within the 
Rutland Urban Centre. The proposed fourplex would be the first property on the block to develop 
to the OCP’s low density multifamily designation and the proposal does not require any variances 
to the Zoning Bylaw.  

5



Z14-0016 – Page 2 

 
In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as per Council Policy 367 – 
Public Notification and Consultation for Development Applications. No major issues were 
identified during consultation with neighbouring parcels.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The subject property presently contains one single detached dwelling. The proposal is to convert 
the existing home into an ‘up down’ two unit structure and add an addition to the house that 
contain another two units. The existing driveway will be removed and all the parking will be 
located off the lane as required by the zoning bylaw.   

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is approximately 716 m2 in area. Specifically, the adjacent land uses are as 
follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

 

Subject Property Map: 260 Ponto Road 

 

 

 

6



Z14-0016 – Page 3 

 
4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Max Height 9.5 m or 2.5 storeys 5.3 m (1.5 stories) 

Min Front Yard 4.5 m 7.5 m 

Min Side Yard (e) 2.0 m 2.6 m 

Min Side Yard (w) 2.0 m 2.0 m 

Min Rear Yard 6.0 m 7.7 m 

Max site coverage of 
buildings  

40 % 32 % 

Max site coverage of 
buildings, driveways & 

parking 
50 % 45 % 

Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 700 m2 716 m2 

Lot Width 20.0 m 20.9 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 34.2 m 

Other Regulations 
Max FAR 0.6 0.58 

Min Parking Requirements 6 stalls  6 stalls 

Min Private Open Space 25 m2 / dwelling unit 30 m2  / dwelling unit 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

 

 

 

 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

7



Z14-0016 – Page 4 

 
6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 As a multi family dwelling (4 plex) all the upgraded code requirements from a single 
family dwelling will apply. This will be required to be provided at time of building permit. 
This will include an upgrade to the water, sewer and fire separations as well as electrical 
and heating systems. Development Engineering Department 

6.2 Engineering Department 

 See Attached. 

6.3 Fire Department 

 Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met. Ensure 
proper addressing off of Abbott Street. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: May 8th 2014 
Date of Public consultation: May 8th 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner   
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
  

Attachments:  

Site Plan / Landscape Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Development Engineering Memo 
 
 
 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
6/27/2014 
 

File: 
 

TA14-0007 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Subject: 
 

Proposed Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment to Carriage House and Accessory 
Building regulations. 
   

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment No. TA14-0007 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw 
No. 8000 by amending Section 2 Interpretation, Section 6.5 Accessory Development, Section 
6.6 Height and Grade, Section 9.5b Carriage House Regulations, and Section 13 (RR1 – Rural 
Residential 1, RR2 – Rural Residential 2, RR3 – Rural Residential 3, RU1 – Large Lot Housing, 
RU2 – Medium Lot Housing, RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing) as outlined in the report from Urban 
Planning dated June 27th 2014, be considered by Council.  
 
AND THAT the Text Amendment Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To improve bylaw regulations for carriage houses and accessory buildings as per Council’s 
direction to Staff on March 17th 2014. Staff was tasked with improving the bylaw regulations 
for carriage house and dormer regulations.  
 
Background: 
 
A text amendment regarding dormer regulations was adopted by Council on April 8th 2013. 
This amendment changed the dormer height regulations and changed the definition of height 
for various buildings. The concern at the time was that large dormers and steeped pitched 
roofs were not meeting the bylaw regulations and were creating taller and more imposing 
carriage houses compared to the existing principal dwelling and the surrounding dwellings. 
Bylaw 10796 amended the dormer regulations from 50% of the width of the roof to 2 dormers 
per elevation with a maximum dormer width of 1.2m and 1.0m minimum separation. The new 
regulations restricted the design and usefulness of dormers. 
 
On March 17th 2014, a group of carriage house designers approached Council with their 
concerns regarding dormers, carriage house height, and other regulations. Council agreed and 

19



TA14-0007 

directed Staff to produce a zoning bylaw text amendment. The major purposes of the text 
amendments (as directed by Council) are: to slightly increase carriage house height, to 
change the dormer rules, to incentivize single storey carriage houses, and to fix the 
regulatory errors / contradictions within the zoning bylaw. The detailed changes for the text 
amendments are attached within ‘Schedule A’. The summary of the major changes are as 
follows: 

Change #1 (dormers): 

- Return to old dormer rules. 
o Delete maximum 2 dormer per elevaltion with a maximum width of 1.2 m. 
o Replace with dormers cannot exceed 50% width of the roof. 

 
Change #2 (carriage house height): 

- Add a carriage house height rule stating the peak of the roof cannot be heigher than 
the peak of the principal dwelling. 

- Increase the maximum height from 4.5m to 4.8m. 
- Add new rule limiting the upper storey of a carriage house to 75% of the carriage 

house footprint. 
 

Change #3 (setbacks): 

- Change carriage house minimum setback from a principal dwelling from 4.5m to 3.0m. 
- Where there is a rear lane, reduce the minimum rear setback for a carriage house to 

0.9m however for any garage or carport that faces and directly accesses the lane keep 
the minimum rear yard setback at 1.5m. 

- Where there is no rear lane, increase the minimum rear setback for a carriage house 
to 2.0m (matches the sideyard setback requirement). 

- Accessory building side yard setbacks increased from 1.0 metres to 1.2 metres. 
 
Change #4 (one storey incentives): 

- (for A1, RR1, RR2, & RR3) If a carriage house is one storey, amend the maximum floor 
area increases from 90m2 to 100m2.  

- (for RU1, RU2, RU3, & RU6) If all accessory buildings / structures and carriage houses 
are limited to one storey, then increase the maximum allowed lot coverage from 14% 
to 20% and increase the maximum combined footprint for all accesory buildings / 
structures and carriage house from 90m2 to 130m2 subject to: 

o The maximum footprint size for carriage houses is limited to 100m2. 
o The maximum footprint size for all accessory buildings / structures (including 

garages) is limited to 50m2. 

Circulation: 
 
The proposed text amendment was circulated to the following departments for comment: 

 Policy & Planning 

 Urban Planning 

 Engineering 

 Building Department 

 Community Planning & Real Estate 

 Various carriage house designers 
 

20



TA14-0007 

Existing Policy: 
 
Relevant Official Community Plan (OCP) objectives and policies regarding dormers and 
carriage house heights: 

1.0 General Considerations 

1.7 Design with consideration given to the relationship between window size and placement 
and scale of building faces, projections, and dormers. Dormers and building faces should 
not be windowless; 

4.0 Massing and height 

4.1 Mitigate the actual and perceived bulk of buildings by utilizing appropriate massing, 
including: 

 Architectural elements (e.g. balconies, bay windows, cantilevered floors, 
cupolas, dormers); 

2.3 Reduce massing next to the backyard of adjacent properties to enhance solar access and 
limit the sense of scale from adjacent properties (i.e., step back the upper level of the 
building or incorporate living space within volume of a sloped roof); 

2.4 Design and finish buildings to complement and enhance the principal dwelling (upgrades 
to the principal dwelling may be required to achieve visual consistency); 

 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 

Legal/Statutory Authority; 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements; 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations; 
Personnel Implications; 
External Agency/Public Comments; 
Communications Comments; 
Alternate Recommendation; 

 
Submitted by:  
 
 
     

Adam Cseke, Planner 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 

Approved for inclusion:          Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
Attachments:  

 
Schedule “A” - Summary of Proposed Text Amendments 

21



1 Updated: 09/07/2014 

 

SCHEDULE ‘A’ Proposed Carriage House Text Amendments 
TA14-0007 

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
No. Section Old text Existing Text Proposed Text Rationale 

1. Section 6.6. 
Height and 
Grade 
6.6.4 – dormers 

Where the width of the dormer 
or dormers exceeds 50% of the 
width of the roof on which they 
are located the height of the 
dormer will be measured as if it 
was the main roof. 

The height of dormers will be measured as if they 
are the main roof, unless the dormers are limited 
to 2 dormers per elevation, with a maximum 
width of 1.2m each and a minimum 1m 
separation. The total width of the dormers may 
not exceed 50% of the horizontal width of the 
building elevation on which they are located. 

Where the width of the dormer or dormers exceeds 50% of the width of the roof on 
which they are located the height of the dormer will be measured as if it was the main 
roof. 

Height is regulated by the number of stories 
and roof height. Dormers are an architectural 
feature that can be addressed at Development 
Permit stage if the house design has negative 
impacts on neighbouring properties and 
therefore height definition back to the old 
definition. 

Section 2 n/a n/a Add text and diagram from the word document labeled “Dormer definition”. A definition, diagram, and associated setbacks 
are proposed to address the concerns that 
dormers could be essentially two full stories 
on the edge of the building. This is why the 
dormer rules were restricted to 4 feet width 
originally. 

2. Section 
9.5b.1(d) 
Carriage House 
Regulations 

Same as existing text A carriage house shall not be higher than the 
lesser of 4.5m or the height of the existing 
principal dwelling unit on the same property. 

• A carriage house shall not be higher than the existing principal dwelling unit on the 
same property as measured to the midpoint of each roof. Additionally, the highest 
point of a carriage house shall not be higher than the highest point of the existing 
principal dwelling unit. 

• The upper storey floor area of any carriage house is limited to 75% of the carriage 
house footprint (this includes any attached garages but not a carport). 

Carriage house height is outlined within each 
zone, therefore delete absolute height limit. 
The proposed change will increase flexibility 
of design while maintaining carriage houses 
and as secondary use. The restriction on the 
upper storey is intended to limit shadowing 
and overlook on neighbouring backyards as 
well as limit the scale and massing of carriage 
houses. Vancouver limits their upper storey 
laneway houses to 60%. 

 
3. RR1 Same as existing text …except it is 6.0m for accessory buildings and 

accessory structures. 
… except it is 6.0m for accessory buildings, carriage house, and accessory structures.  

4. RR2, RR3, RU1, 
RU2,& RU6  

Same as existing text The maximum height is the lesser of 9.5m or 2 ½ 
storeys, except it is 4.5 m for accessory buildings 
and accessory structures. 

The maximum height for principal buildings is the lesser of 9.5m or 2 ½ storeys. The 
maximum height for accessory buildings / structures is 4.5m. The maximum height for 
carriage houses is 4.8m.  

Add height to carriage house as directed by 
Council. 

 
5. Section 13 – 

Other 
Regulations 
RU1, RU2,& RU6 

Same as existing text  A carriage house, in accordance with Section 
9.5b, may only be located within an accessory 
building that is no closer than 4.5m to the 
principal building. 

A carriage house must not be closer than 3.0m to an existing principal building. SFDs with 1.5 metre side yard setbacks is an 
appropriate distance before significant bldg 
code requirements for separation are 
applicable. The additional 1.5 metres does 
not add any value in terms of open space as 
the city already has an open space 
requirement. 

Section 13 – 
Other 
Regulations 
A1, RR1, RR3 

Same as existing text A secondary suite, in accordance with Section 
9.5a, may only be located within a single 
detached dwelling. A carriage house, in 
accordance with Section 9.5b, may only be 
located within an accessory building that is no 
closer than 5.0 m to the principal building. 

A carriage house must not be closer than 3.0m to an existing principal building. Same rationale as above. 
Secondary suite definition does not need to be 
repeated here. 

Section 13 – 
Development 
Regulations 
RR2 

Same as existing text A secondary suite, in accordance with Section 
9.5a, may only be located within a single 
detached dwelling. A carriage house, in 
accordance with Section 9.5b, may only be 
located within an accessory building that is no 
closer than 5.0 m to the principal building. 

A carriage house must not be closer than 3.0m to an existing principal building.  
 
(and move to section 12.2.7 Other regulations) 

Same rationale as above. 
Secondary suite definition does not need to be 
repeated here. 

 

22



2 Updated: 09/07/2014 

 

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
No. Section Old text Existing Text Proposed Text Rationale 

6. Section 2 - 
Interpretation 

Same as existing text ACCESSORY BUILDING OR STRUCTURE means a 
separate building or structure that may be 
connected to the principal building by a 
breezeway, normally ancillary, incidental, 
subordinate, and located on the same lot as the 
main building or structure. Typical accessory 
structures include but are not limited to 
antennae, propane tanks, satellite dishes, 
flagpoles, garages, and garden sheds. 
 

ACCESSORY BUILDING OR STRUCTURE means a separate building or structure that may 
be connected to the principal building by a breezeway, normally ancillary, incidental, 
subordinate, and located on the same lot as the main building or structure. Typical 
accessory structures include but are not limited to antennae, propane tanks, satellite 
dishes, flagpoles, garages, and garden sheds. Accessory buildings or structures may not 
contain a dwelling unit. 

Split up definition of accessory building and 
carriage house. It is confusing because 
currently, RU4, RM1, & RM2 can technically 
be permitted a carriage house. 

CARRIAGE HOUSE means an additional dwelling 
unit located within an accessory building that is 
subordinate to the principal dwelling unit and is a 
single real estate entity. The total floor space is 
no more than 90m2 in area, and has a floor space 
less than 75% of the total habitable floor space of 
the principal building.  
 

CARRIAGE HOUSE means an additional dwelling unit located within a building that is 
subordinate to the principal dwelling unit and is a single real estate entity. 

TWO DWELLING HOUSING means housing that 
contains two single family dwelling units, one of 
which may or may not be a permitted secondary 
suite in a single family dwelling or a carriage 
house. 

TWO DWELLING HOUSING means housing that contains either: two single family dwelling 
units, one single family dwelling with a permitted secondary suite, one duplex, or one 
semi-detached dwelling unit. 

 

7. Multiple 
sections… Zones 
(A1, RR1, RR2, 
RR3, RU1, RU2) 

N/A b) Permitted accessory buildings or 
structures (which may contain a carriage 
house ___c zone only) 

b) Permitted accessory buildings or structures 
c) Carriage house (permitted only on properties that have a ‘c’ designated sub-zone) 
d) Only one secondary dwelling unit is permitted (e.g. secondary suite or carriage 

house) 

 

Section 13.6 
RU6 zone 

e) Permitted accessory buildings or 
structures which may contain a carriage 
house. 

b) Permitted accessory buildings or structures 
c) Carriage house 
d) Only one secondary dwelling unit is permitted (e.g. secondary suite or carriage 

house) 

 

 

8. Section 6.5 Same as existing text 6.5.5 An accessory building or structure shall not 
be used as a dwelling unless it is a permitted 
carriage house. 

Delete Covered in the new accessory building 
definition 

6.5.6 Where an accessory building or structure is 
used as a dwelling and is greater than one storey 
in height, the accessory building or structure 
must include a garage or a carport for a minimum 
of one vehicle. 

Delete Regulation already stated in carriage house 
section 

23



3 Updated: 09/07/2014 

 

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
No. Section Old text Existing Text Proposed Text Rationale 

6.5.7 Lot coverage of accessory buildings or 
structures shall not exceed 14% or a maximum 
area of 90 m² for accessory buildings in the 
Residential Urban zones. 

Keep section 6.5.7 
 
Add to each zones site coverage: 

•  (A1, RR1, RR2, RR3) - Lot coverage of accessory buildings or structures and 
carriage house shall not exceed a combined 14%. The maximum floor area of a 
carriage house shall be 90 m² or 75% of the total floor area of the principal 
building. The maximum floor area of a carriage house may increase to a 
maximum of 100 m² only if the carriage house is limited to one (1) storey in 
height and is less than75% of the total floor area of the principal building. 
 

• (RU1, RU2, RU6) “For all accessory buildings or structures and carriage houses:” 
 
o The maximum combined lot coverage of all accessory buildings or structures 

and carriage houses shall not exceed 14%  
o The maximum combined area of all accessory buildings / structures and 

carriage houses (e.g. footprint size) shall not exceed 90 m².  
o The maximum net floor area of a carriage house shall not exceed 90 m². 
o The maximum net floor area of all carriage houses (including 1 storey 

carriage houses) shall not exceed 75% of the total net floor area of the 
principal building. 

o If a development contains a carriage house and if the height of all the 
accessory buildings / structures, and carriage house are limited to one (1) 
storey then the following bonus applies: 

 The maximum combined lot coverage of all accessory buildings / 
structures and carriage houses may be increased to a maximum 
of 20% 

 The maximum combined area of all accessory buildings / 
structures and carriage houses (e.g. footprint size) may be 
increased to a maximum of 130 m² subject to: 

• The maximum area (e.g. footprint size) of a carriage 
house shall not exceed 100 m².  

• The maximum area (e.g. footprint size) of all accessory 
buildings / structures (including garages) shall not 
exceed 50 m². 

 

Delete size requirement as they are outlined 
within each zone. 
 
A1, RR1, RR2, & RR3 will be proposed to 
permit 90m2 of total area (footprint size) for a 
carriage house and 90m2 of total area 
(footprint size) for accessory buildings.  
 
This is a way to incentivize 1 storey 
development by increasing the allowable 
area. 100 m² was chosen as this would provide 
a 10% bonus in floor. A maximum of 130 m² 
combined area was chosen as this would 
provide enough space for the bonus carriage 
house a two car garage (~30 m²). 

6.5.8.(b) Accessory buildings containing 
secondary suites shall conform to the side yard 
setback requirements for the principal building in 
the zone. 

Delete Regulation moved to carriage house section 

6.5.8 (b) an accessory building in an urban 
residential zone or a rural residential zone shall 
be located no less than 1.0 metres from the side 
lot line, except that where the accessory building 
does not exceed the fence height (2.0 metres) 
and is less than 10.0m2 in area, it may be located 
closer than 1.0 metres from the side lot line. 

6.5.8 (b) an accessory building in an urban residential zone or a rural residential zone 
shall be located no less than 1.2 metres from the side lot line, except that where the 
accessory building does not exceed the fence height (2.0 metres) and is less than 10.0m2 
in area, it may be located closer than 1.2 metres from the side lot line. 

Increase setbacks for accessory buildings as 
this conforms with building code 
requirements.  

  6.5.9 In addition to the provisions of Section 
6.5.8, the distance between an accessory building 
and the side lot line abutting a flanking street, 
shall not be less than the side yard abutting a 
flanking street required for the principal 
building. 

All accessory buildings shall adhere to the setbacks outlined in this section. All other 
setback requirements shall adhere to the principal building setback as outlined within 
the particular zone unless specified otherwise within that zone. 

Clean up language. Add clarity. 

24



4 Updated: 09/07/2014 

 

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
No. Section Old text Existing Text Proposed Text Rationale 

 

9. Section 9.5b 
Carriage House 
Regulations 

Same as existing text No structural alteration or addition shall be 
undertaken that alters the existing low-density 
residential character of the neighbourhood. 

Delete This has no regulatory meaning. 

A 1 ½ storey carriage house must include a garage 
or carport for a minimum of one vehicle. Single 
storey carriage houses are not required to provide 
an attached garage or carport. 

Any carriage house above one storey in height (including half stories) must include a 
garage or carport for a minimum of one vehicle. Single storey carriage houses are not 
required to provide an attached garage or carport. 

Shed roof and other architectural design for 
carriage houses were permitted but were 
deemed to be a second storey rather than a 
half storey. Therefore, the garage / carport 
regulation is intended to be applied to all 
cases above 1 storey. 

The principal dwelling unit shall be located 
between the front yard and the carriage house 
except for double fronting lots or for a lot in the 
A1c – Agricultural 1 with carriage house zone. 
Where a carriage house is located in the A1c – 
Agricultural 1 with carriage house zone, the 
accessory building must be located at least two 
times the distance of the required front yard 
setback. 

The principal dwelling unit shall be located between the front yard and the carriage 
house except for double fronting lots or for a lot in the A1c – Agricultural 1 with 
carriage house zone. Where a carriage house is located in the A1c – Agricultural 1 with 
carriage house zone, the carriage house must be located at least two times the distance 
of the required front yard setback. For double fronting lots, the carriage house shall be 
sited in accordance with the regulations for a single detached dwelling. 

Clarify meaning and separate carriage house 
from accessory building. 

n/a n/a The minimum side yard setback for carriage houses is 2.0 metres except it is 4.5 metres 
from a flanking street. 

Add side setback clarification 

n/a Previous rear setback was 1.5m (what the 
accessory building setback is). 

When there is a rear lane, carriage houses must adhere to the following requirements: 
• The minimum rear yard setback for a carriage house is 0.9m. Any garage or 

carport that faces and directly accesses the lane must be setback a minimum 1.5 
metres from the rear parcel line. 
 

When there is no rear lane, carriage houses must adhere to the following requirements: 
• The minimum rear yard setback for a carriage house is 2.0 metres. 

0.9m setback is used in Vancouver for 
laneway housing and it is undesirable to 
create a driveway that will cause parking 
issues blocking the lane (2.0m to 6.0m). 

  The maximum floor area of the carriage house 
shall not exceed the lesser of 90 m² or 75% of the 
total floor area of the principal building. 

Delete  This regulation has been moved to be located 
within each zone. 

 
 

25



26



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 2, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (JM/LG) 

Application: 

OCP11-0011 

Z11-0069 

TA11-0010 

Owner: 

PROVDEV GP LTD 

(INC NO A87135 

1378310 ALBERTA LTD 

 (INC NO A77231) 

Address: 2755 McCurdy Road Applicant: NORR Architects Planners 

Title: 
Official Community Plan Amendment, Rezoning, Text Amendment and Housing 
Agreement Applications  

Existing OCP Designation: 

 

 
REP – Resource Protection Area 
PARK – Major Park & Open Space (public) 
 

Proposed OCP Designation: 

 

 

REP – Resource Protection Area 
PARK – Major Park & Open Space (public) 
S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential 
MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (low density) 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

Proposed Zone: 

 

A1 – Agriculture 1 
P3 – Parks and Open Space 
RH3- Hillside Cluster Housing 
RHM4 – Hillside Cluster Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP11-0011 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of portions of Lot 1, District Lots 124 & 415, ODYD, Plan KAP84653 located at 2755 
McCurdy Road, Kelowna, BC from the REP - Resource Protection Area and PARK - Major Park & 
Open Space designations to the S2RES - Single/Two Unit Residential, MRL - Multiple Unit 
Residential (low density), REP - Resource Protection Area and PARK - Major Park & Open Space 
designations, as shown on Map “A” attached to the Report from the Urban Planning Department 
dated July 2, 2014, be considered by Council; 

27



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 2 

 
 

AND THAT Council considers the Public Information Session public process to be appropriate 
consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined in the 
Report of the Land Use Management Department dated April 28, 2014; 

AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z11-0069 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
by changing the zoning classification of portions of Lot 1, District Lots 124 & 415, ODYD, Plan 
KAP84653 located at 2755 McCurdy Road, Kelowna, BC from the A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to the P3 
– Parks and Open Space, RH3 – Hillside Cluster Housing and RHM4 – Hillside Cluster Multiple 
Housing, and A1 – Agriculture 1 zones, as shown on Map “B” attached to the Report from the 
Urban Planning Department dated July 2, 2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment Application No. TA11-0010 to amend the City of 
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 to add a new zone, RHM4 – Hillside Cluster Multiple Housing, as 
outlined in the report from the Urban Planning department dated July 2, 2014, be considered by 
Council; 

AND THAT Bylaw No. 10886 authorizing a Housing Agreement between the City of Kelowna, 
PRODEV GP LTD., Inc. No. A87135 and 1378310 ALBERTA LTD., Inc. No. A77231, which requires 
the owners to designate 17 dwelling units for purpose-built rental housing on Lot 1, District Lots 
124 & 415, ODYD, Plan KAP84653 located at 2755 McCurdy Road, Kelowna, BC, be forwarded for 
reading consideration; 

AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw, Zone Amending Bylaw, Text 
Amendment Bylaw, and Housing Agreement Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch and the Ministry of Transportation being 
completed to their satisfaction;  

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the issuance 
of a Preliminary Layout Review Letter by the Approving Officer; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
registration on title of a Section 219 Restrictive Covenant requiring the provision of 17 rental 
housing units; 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction 
with Council’s consideration of a Development Permit for the subject property. 

 

2.0 Purpose  

To amend the Official Community Plan and Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 to allow for the development 
of 343 multi-unit residential dwelling units, including 17 units of purpose-build rental housing, in 
a mix of row housing and low-rise apartment housing forms on the subject parcel. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

The applicant is seeking to develop a total of 343 multi-unit residential dwelling units on the site 
in a mix of row housing and low-rise apartment housing. In order to facilitate this, an Official 
Community Plan amendment and a Rezoning are required.  

In addition, the applicant and staff have worked together to create a new zone entitled RHM4 – 
Hillside Cluster Multiple Housing for the development of low-rise apartment housing in hillside 
settings, which is proposed to be introduced through a Text Amendment to the Zoning Bylaw.  

28



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 3 

 
 

The applicant has also agreed to provide a total of 17 units of purpose built rental housing, which 
is secured via a Housing Agreement bylaw and associated Section 219 restrictive covenant. 

After extensive deliberation, Urban Planning supports the application based on the following 
analysis. When considering a proposal to develop 343 residential units on the western portion of 
the subject property, its merits must be measured against the objectives of the Official 
Community Plan (OCP) as well as other major City of Kelowna policy documents. Such an 
evaluation involves examining the proposal on several fronts, such as its impact on agriculture 
and the environment, infrastructure, urban development patterns, and hillside context. Analysis 
of these impacts is provided below. 

General Merits:  

While the proposed development would cause a significant change in the future land use 
designation of the subject property (from Resource Protection Area (AGR) to multiple unit 
residential development) the proposal does provide several community benefits. 

Foremost is the dedication of the majority of the property to the City. A portion of this dedicated 
land will be used to accommodate the future extension of the Central Okanagan Multi-Modal 
Corridor (COMC) running north/south through the subject property. Since the precise alignment 
for this corridor is yet to be determined, the proposed dedication allows a high degree of 
flexibility for the City when detailed design of the corridor is pursued. The dedicated lands will 
also provide for the extension and upgrade of McCurdy Road to full urban standard in the future. 
Beyond these transportation needs, the dedication affords opportunities for future recreational 
trails, and environmental protection and enhancement along Mill Creek. 

Also, the proponent has included 17 units of Purpose Built Rental Housing (PBRH) in their 
application package. This represents approximately 5% of the total unit yield for the 
development. These units add to the diversity and affordability of housing tenures in the area, 
assisting in the creation of a more diverse neighbourhood. 

Finally, the applicant team has expended a great deal of time in a genuine effort to create a 
sensitive hillside community. The team has worked with Staff to develop a new hillside cluster 
zone with the goal of facilitating high-quality, sensitive hillside development. The results are 
evident in the design, layout and siting of the proposal which features buildings that step back in 
accordance with the natural slope, minimize grading, and maximize the preservation of 
environmentally sensitive and visually significant features. 

Urban Development: 

The OCP has taken great care to lay out a plan for the future of residential development in the 
City. The OCP is built around the concept of creating complete communities by directing 
development towards Urban and Village Centres. This foundational concept is representative of 
good planning practice that aims to capitalize on the advantages provided by denser centres, 
such as: 

• Increased transit access, as density is present to support increased service; 

• Mixed-use development that improves ease of access to services, facilities and employment; 

• Reduced vehicle use, as more services and employment are easily accessible by walking or 
transit; 

• More efficient use of infrastructure, with lower long-term costs; 

• Reduced environmental impacts, as pressure for development on greenfield sites is reduced; 

29



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 4 

 
 

• Improved energy efficiency, as denser, more compact forms of housing typically use less 
energy than more dispersed, low density development; and 

• Increased housing variety, both in terms of form and tenure. 

It is the combination of the factors above, in addition to others, that work together to create 
vibrant, efficient and sustainable urban environments. Despite the benefits listed in the 
preceding section, the proposed development is not situated in either an Urban or a Village 
Centre. 

Building on this point, the physical location of a development is one of the factors that 
contributes most to its long term sustainability. For instance, it is likely that a purely residential 
development featuring a wide array of sustainable building features, but located in the outlying 
areas of a city, will be less sustainable than a similar development with fewer sustainable 
building features located in an urban centre. Using the above rationale, the success of Kelowna’s 
designated urban centres is integral to the sustainability of the city over the long term.  

In the case of the proposed development, the nearest accessible urban centre is the Midtown 
urban centre, which is more than 3km away by vehicle. Pedestrian access by trail reduces this 
distance to approximately 1.2km. This situation would be somewhat improved upon the eventual 
extension of McCurdy Road, which will bring the Rutland urban centre to within 1.8km. However, 
these distances do not compare favourably to the walkability measurement standards typically 
relied upon for analysis, which are the 400m and 800m radii, representing approximately 5 and 
10 minute walking times respectively. Based on these standards, and considering future 
development in the area, it is unlikely that future residents of the proposed development would 
be within convenient walking distance of many amenities and services, beyond convenience 
commercial and recreational trails. 

In addition, full development of this road is outside of the 20-year timeframe of the OCP, and is 
not identified in the Transit Future Plan for any transit service. Therefore, for at least 20 years, 
the development will be accessible by vehicles exclusively from Mount Baldy Drive, and, as a 
result, is relatively isolated from necessary employment and services (located in urban centres), 
except by trail.  

Finally, a Permanent Growth Boundary (PGB) traditionally provides the ability for local 
governments to limit development on the periphery of the city. As the city grows, so expands the 
PGB, all the while encouraging more compact development within it and protecting lands outside 
of it from unnecessary and premature speculation and development pressure. While the proposed 
development is located within the edge of the Permanent Growth Boundary, this area was not 
projected to be developed within the 20 year timeframe of the OCP, as services and 
infrastructure are not in place. Ideally, development on this land would occur as the availability 
of serviced land is substantially reduced, thus following the logic of the PGB. 

Infrastructure: 

As part of the development proposal, the applicant team has worked with the City to construct a 
portion of the McCurdy Road corridor. The OCP has identified this portion as extending westward 
from its current terminus at the Marshall Business Centre, connecting to Rifle Road. The 
applicant would be responsible for the portion between Mt. Baldy Drive and the Marshall Business 
Centre. This is a significant infrastructure commitment from the applicant team, involving 
substantial design, engineering and construction elements.  

However, there would remain a section of the eventual McCurdy Road connection still unbuilt, 
between Mt. Baldy Drive and Rifle Road. At this time, completion of the final phase of McCurdy 
Road has not been scheduled within the 20 year OCP timeframe. Without this ultimate alignment 

30



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 5 

 
 

complete, traffic on McCurdy Road, which is a full arterial classification, will be forced onto Mt. 
Baldy Drive, which is only a collector road. As planned, Mt. Baldy Drive will benefit from several 
road upgrades, including widening, and signalization in accordance with collector/rural road 
standards. Nevertheless, making this road connection in advance of preparing the ultimate build-
out may put pressure on the City to complete the final phase of McCurdy much earlier than 
planned. Despite this future consideration, City staff have reviewed this application, and it may 
move forward without affecting either the City’s Financial Plan or Waste Management Plan. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

Introduction 

In 2011, the proponent submitted their applications seeking permission to undertake a multiple 
unit residential development on the subject property. At that time, the proposal featured the 
following key elements: 

 314 dwelling units in a mix of row housing and low-rise apartments; 

 Commitment to 5% affordable housing using a mix of units representative of the overall 
development; 

 Dedication of all lands east of the existing gas right-of-way, but west of Mill Creek, to the 
City; 

 Sensitive hillside development, which reduces development footprint and visual impact; 
and 

 Pedestrian and emergency connection to Highway 97. 

The proposal triggered the need for an application for subdivision within the Agricultural Land 
Reserve (ALR), which was considered by Council on December 12, 2011 and subsequently 
authorized by the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) on June 11, 2012 (Resolution 208/2012). 

Since then, the proposal has been amended several times as staff and the applicant have worked 
to find solutions to significant ownership, servicing and infrastructure challenges. Both water 
servicing and public road dedication and construction have posed significant obstacles to the 
development; however, these issues have now been addressed. 

The initial plan for affordable housing has also changed a number of times, moving from 
affordable ownership, to affordable rental and ownership, and now purpose-built rental housing. 

Public Consultation 

The applicant team held an open house on June 17, 2014. 698 invitations were mailed out to the 
surrounding neighbours. Seven display posters and a miniature model of the proposed 
development were available to be viewed at the open house. The applicant has confirmed that 
16 neighbours attended the meeting, which equates to a 1.9% attendance rate. 

Infrastructure and Development Cost Charges 

The City’s 20 Year Servicing Plan and Financing Strategy uses the OCP as a guide to plan for 
future infrastructure needs. For instance, where the OCP anticipates significant growth and 
development, the 20 Year Servicing Plan will ensure that the infrastructure is in place to 
accommodate such growth. Knowing this, contemplating a significant development outside the 
OCP becomes challenging, as it may require reconsideration of elements of the 20 Year Servicing 

31



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 6 

 
 

Plan. This can have far-reaching consequences to other plans and documents, such as the 
Development Cost Charge (DCC) Bylaw. 

As this is a significant development outside of the OCP, the applicant and staff have had to put 
considerable resources behind the transportation infrastructure requirements, as well as water 
and sanitary services. After review, staff did not feel that any of the infrastructure requirements 
warranted revision of the DCC program. Nevertheless, staff does note that the timing of this 
development may trigger the need for the City to consider advancing the construction of the 
connection between McCurdy and Rifle Roads. 

4.2 Project Description 

The proponent is seeking to develop a total of 343 dwelling units on the subject property in the 
form of row housing and low-rise apartment housing. Development is concentrated on the west 
side of the lot between the western property line and the existing gas utility right-of-way. The 
units are divided among three general clusters: one to the south containing up to 70 units of row 
housing or stacked row housing; a central cluster containing 122 condominium units, 24 
apartment units, and 12 row housing units; and northern cluster featuring 107 condominium 
units, and 8 row housing units (see attached Site Plan). 

The clusters of development respond to the unique geographic constraints of the site. The 
southern cluster is located in a large and low east-facing draw; the central cluster surrounds the 
north, south, and west sides of a knoll; and the northern site is located in a south-facing draw. 

The applicant is dedicating the alignment of McCurdy Road through the site to the City. McCurdy 
Road is slated eventually to connect to Rifle Road to the west. In addition, the applicant is 
constructing a portion of McCurdy Road through the site to full standard, and is constructing the 
remainder to an emergency access standard, including the crossing of Mill Creek. This emergency 
access will serve a secondary purpose as an active modes connection from the development to 
Highway 97 and rapid transit. 

Principal access for the development will be taken from Mt. Baldy Drive for the central cluster of 
development. Both southern and northern clusters will be accessed via private strata roads off 
McCurdy Road. 

Both the road network and development siting have been designed so as to minimize impact on 
the prominent hillside and on the natural environment. Grading will be minimized and, where 
there are exposed cuts or fills, suitable landscaping is proposed to mitigate the visual impact. 
The design of the buildings themselves will also be sensitive to the hillside environment, 
featuring reduced massing, and increased building articulation. Significant riparian restoration 
will also be required on site along Mill Creek in order to compensate for the environmental 
impacts of the development and the extension of McCurdy Road. 

The applicant is also proposing to dedicate the remainder of the subject property east of the gas 
utility right-of-way to the City, with the exception of the portion of the property east of Mill 
Creek. The lands can be used by the City for park purposes, and for the future Central Okanagan 
Multi-Modal Corridor, which is planned to run through the subject property roughly parallel to 
Mill Creek. 

Finally, the applicant is proposing to build 17 units of purpose-built rental housing towards 
achieving the City’s affordable housing objectives. This will be secured via Housing Agreement 
and covenant. 

 

32



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 7 

 
 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located west of Highway 97 between the Dilworth Mountain development 
and the westernmost extent of McCurdy Road. The lot is approximately 27.6ha in area and is 
hooked across Mill Creek, which runs roughly north-south through the parcel. The majority of the 
property lies on the west side of Mill Creek, with a relatively small remainder (approx. 2.3ha) on 
the east side. With the exception of several farm buildings that were part of the original Marshall 
Feedlot, the parcel remains undeveloped. 

The property contains a mix of steep slopes and draws on the west and relatively flat lands to the 
east around Mill Creek. In addition to Mill Creek, the west side of parcel is further bisected by a 
Statutory Right of Way (SROW) for a gas transmission line, which runs roughly parallel to the 
creek. The majority of the parcel lying east of the SROW is situated within the Agricultural Land 
Reserve (ALR). The proposed development is located entirely outside of the ALR.  

With the exception of the northeastern portion, the subject parcel is within the Permanent 
Growth Boundary. The proposal respects this boundary and no portion of the development is 
proposed to take place outside of the boundary. Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 
 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 Undeveloped/agricultural lands 

East 
P3 – Parks and Open Space, I1 – Business 
Industrial, I2 – General Industrial 

Mill Creek Linear Park, Marshall Business 
Centre 

South 
C10 – Service Commercial, A1 – Agriculture 
1, P3 – Parks and Open Space 

CN Railway, service commercial 
development, Mill Creek Linear Park 

West 

A1 – Agriculture 1, P3 – Parks and Open 
Space, RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing, 
RM4 – Transitional Low Density Housing, 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 

Agricultural development, natural open 
space, townhouse development, low-rise 
apartments, undeveloped land. 

 

  

33



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 8 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 2755 McCurdy Road 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table  

Density 

Within each new zoning bylaw, criteria for determining maximum density yields are outlined in 
order for applications to determine unit number and/or FAR for a subject site. The eventual unit 
count and square footage on site is determined by both the amount of eligible Development Area 
on the rezoned site and any Voluntary Dedication of valuable land to the City. 
 
For the Marshall West application a summary of the relevant areas are as follows: 
 
Development Lot Area: 
RMH4 = 4.24 ha 
RH3 = 2.9 ha 
Voluntary Dedication Credits = 3.98 ha 
 
40% of the rezoned Development Area is expected to be RH3 while the remainder is RHM4. With 
an allowable RH3 yield of 22 units per hectare and an RMH4 FAR of 0.5, this results in the 
following densities: 
 

Allowable Maximum RH3 Yield = (2.9 ha + (40% x 3.98 ha)) x 22 uph = 99 units 
Allowable Maximum RHM4 Yield = (4.24 ha + (60% x 3.98 ha)) X 0.5 = 356,586 ft2

 

 

34



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 9 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Develop sustainably.1 

Complete Suburbs.2 Support a mix of uses within Kelowna’s suburbs (see Map 5.1 - Urban Core 
Area), in accordance with “Smart Growth” principles to ensure complete communities. Uses that 
should be present in all areas of the City (consistent with Map 4.1 - Future Land Use Map), at 
appropriate locations, include: commercial, institutional, and all types of residential uses 
(including affordable and special needs housing) at densities appropriate to their context. 
Building heights in excess of four storeys will not be supported within the suburban areas, unless 
provided for by zoning existing prior to adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500. 

Complete Communities.3 Support the development of complete communities with a minimum 
intensity of approximately 35 - 40 people and/or jobs per hectare to support basic transit service 
- a bus every 30 minutes. 

Focus development to designated growth areas.4 

Compact Urban Form.5 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Permanent Growth Boundary.6 Establish a Permanent Growth Boundary as identified on Map 4.1 
and Map 5.2. The City of Kelowna will support development of property outside the Permanent 
Growth Boundary for more intensive use only to the extent permitted as per the OCP Future Land 
Use designations in place as of initial adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500, except for Agri-Business 
designated sites or as per Council’s specific amendment of this policy. The Permanent Growth 
Boundary may be reviewed as part of the next major OCP update. 

Ensure adherence to form and character, natural environment, hazardous condition and 
conservation guidelines.7 

Support the creation of affordable and safe rental, non-market and/or special needs 
housing.8 

Maximize Pedestrian / Cycling Connectivity.9 Require that pedestrian and cyclist movement and 
infrastructure be addressed in the review and approval of all City and private sector 
developments, including provision of sidewalks and trails and recognition of frequently used 
connections and informal pedestrian routes. With new developments, require dedication of on-
                                                      
1
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.2 (Development Process Chapter). 

2
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

3
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.4 (Development Process Chapter). 

4
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

5 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
6
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.1 (Development Process Chapter). 

7
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.4 (Development Process Chapter). 

8
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.9 (Development Process Chapter). 

9
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.10.1 (Development Process Chapter). 

35



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 10 

 
 

site walking and cycling paths where necessary to provide links to adjacent parks, schools, transit 
stops, recreation facilities, employment nodes, cul-de-sacs and large activity areas. 

Provide parks for a diversity of people and a variety of uses.10 

Dedication of Linear Parks.11 At subdivision and rezoning for all development types secure a 
minimum 10-metre wide linear corridor for public access as included in Table 5.1 Linear Park – 
Public Access and/or are shown on Map 5.9 – Linear Corridors / Paths. The 10-metre wide 
corridor may be in addition to, and outside, any riparian management area requirements imposed 
through the Environmental Development Permit (see Chapter 12) requirements of the OCP. On 
the private property side of the public access corridor, the City may, as necessary, consider 
stipulating additional “no disturb” zones. Lot line adjustments or other subdivision applications 
not resulting in the creation of new lots suitable for the construction of buildings permitted 
under the applicable zoning will be considered exempt from this policy. Linear trail corridors can 
have the following tenure which will be determined by staff at the time of subdivision or 
rezoning: 

• Titled property in the name of the city as a park, protected area, or 

• Road reserve right of way; or 

• Statutory right of way. 

Environmentally Sensitive Area Linkages.12 Ensure that development activity does not 
compromise the ecological function of environmentally sensitive areas and maintains the 
integrity of plant and wildlife corridors. 

Habitat Management Hierarchy.13 Require that all City projects and private development 
proposals adhere to the following sequence of management actions, as identified in a 
Development Permit, to achieve the “no net loss/net gain” principle of ESA’s: 

• AVOID impacts to habitat through appropriate project siting and design; 

• MITIGATE minor or temporary impacts by minimizing impacts, and repairing and restoring 
damaged habitats to their former state or better; 

• COMPENSATE only when residual, permanent loss of habitat is unavoidable, acceptable and 
compensable. Habitat compensation proposals will not be accepted as a trade-off for incomplete 
on-site mitigation where effective mitigation efforts are feasible. Development proponents are 
responsible for proving that all measures to avoid or mitigate potential habitat impacts have 
been exhausted prior to proposing habitat compensation measures on or off-site. 

Habitat Protection.14 Ensure a proposed development footprint within an ESA is configured in 
such a way as to minimise the encroachment toward aquatic or terrestrial habitat. Consider 
zoning and/ or subdivision variances where needed to prevent or minimize a relaxation of or 
encroachment into the RMA or to acquire greater RMA width for environmental protection or 
hazard avoidance. 

                                                      
10

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.14 (Development Process Chapter). 
11

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.14.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
12

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.15.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
13

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.15.4 (Development Process Chapter). 
14

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.15.11 (Development Process Chapter). 

36



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 11 

 
 

Steep Slopes.15 Prohibit development on steep slopes (+30% or greater for a minimum distance of 
10 metres) except where provided for in ASPs adopted or subdivisions approved prior to adoption 
of OCP Bylaw 10500. 

Access Through Steep Slopes.16 Discourage roads (public or private) through +30% slope areas 
intended to access lands beyond, except in cases where it can be demonstrated the road will be 
sensitively integrated(visual and aesthetic impacts minimized) with the natural environment and 
will present no hazards to persons or property, environmental threats or unreasonable servicing 
or maintenance challenges. 

Ensure context sensitive housing development.17 

Cluster Housing.18 Require new residential development to be in the form of cluster housing on / 
or near environmentally sensitive areas and areas of steeper slopes to lessen site disturbance and 
environmental impact on those areas identified on the Future Land Use Map 4.1 as single-two 
unit residential hillside. Steeply sloped areas should be retained as natural open space, public or 
private. The intent of the clustering would be to preserve features identified through the 
Development Permit process that otherwise might be developed and to maximize open space in 
order to: 

a. Protect environmentally sensitive areas of a development site and preserve them on a 
permanent basis utilizing the most appropriate tools available; 

b. Facilitate creative and flexible site design that is sensitive to the land’s natural features 
and adaptive to the natural topography; 

c. Decrease or minimize non-point source (i.e. asphalt roofs, driveways and parking) 
pollution impacts by reducing the amount of impervious surfaces in site development; 

d. Promote overall cost savings on infrastructure installation and maintenance; and 

e. Provide opportunities for social interaction, walking and hiking in open space areas. 

Ensure all development is consistent with the vision, goals and objectives of the OCP.19 

Evaluation Checklist.20 Evaluate development applications that require an OCP amendment on 
the basis of the extent to which they comply with underlying OCP objectives, including the 
following: 

• Does the proposed development contribute to preserving lands with slopes greater than 
30%? Yes. 

• Does the proposed development respect the OCP Permanent Growth Boundary (OCP Map 
4.1 and 5.2)? Yes. 

• Does the proposed development feature a mix of residential, employment, institutional, 
and/or recreational uses within individual buildings or larger development projects? No. 

• Is the proposed development located in an Urban Centre? No. 

• Does the proposed development increase the supply of affordable (as defined in the OCP) 
apartments or townhouses? Yes. 

                                                      
15

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.15.12 (Development Process Chapter). 
16

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.15.13 (Development Process Chapter). 
17

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.22 (Development Process Chapter). 
18

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.1 (Development Process Chapter). 
19

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.40 (Development Process Chapter). 
20

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.40.1 (Development Process Chapter). 

37



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 12 

 
 

• Is the property serviced with water and City sanitary sewer at the time of application? No. 

• Could the proposed project be built at no financial cost to the City? (This should consider 
operational and maintenance costs.) No. 

• Would the proposed project help decrease the rate of travel by private automobile, 
especially during peak hours? No. 

• Is there transit service within 400 metres of non-residential projects or major employment 
generators (50+ employees)? n/a  

• Does the proposed project involve redevelopment of currently under-utilized, urbanized 
land? No. 

• Does the proposed project result in the creation of substantially more public open space 
than would be available if the development were not to proceed (not including required 
open space dedications or non-developable areas)? Yes. 

• Is there a deficiency of properties within the applicable Sector (see Map 5.4) that already 
have the required OCP designation? No. 

• Does the project avoid negative impacts (shadowing, traffic, etc.) on adjoining properties 
where those adjoining properties are not slated for land use changes? Yes. 

• Is the project consistent with the height principles established in the OCP? Yes. 

• If the project goes ahead, would surrounding property owners be likely to develop their 
properties as per OCP Future Land Use and other City policy provisions? Yes. 

• Would the additional density or new land use designation enhance the surrounding 
neighbourhood in a way that the current land use designation does not? n/a. 

• Could the project be supported without over-burdening existing park and other 
community resources or threatening the viability of existing neighbourhood resources? 
Yes. 

Servicing Plan.21 The 20 Year Servicing Plan and Financing Strategy has been developed assuming 
that growth will occur as noted in this Official Community Plan. Development in locations or of 
types not anticipated in this plan may trigger a requirement for an impact study to be prepared 
at developer expense so that impacts on the 20 Year Servicing Plan and Financing Strategy can be 
identified and addressed. The impact studies, may include, but will not necessarily be limited to 
preparation of advance road plans that identify all vehicle, transit, cycle route, and trail linkages 
and provide a mix of trail, local, collector and major roads necessary to create a balanced road 
system on and off-site. 

6.0 Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Requires fire department access, refer to comments from the Fire Department. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached Memorandum, dated June 5, 2013. 

  

                                                      
21

 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.40.2 (Development Process Chapter). 

38



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 13 

 
 

6.3 Environment 

 Environment and Land Use Branch supports the proposed development, subject to the 
following: 

o Submission of a complete Environmental Assessment prepared in accordance with City 
standards; 

o Adherence to OCP Section 5.15 for avoidance, mitigation and compensation; 

o Dedication to the City of all riparian areas on the subject property; 

o Avoidance of all slopes in excess of 30%; and 

o Receipt of Natural Environment and Hazardous Conditions Development Permits. 

6.4 Fire Department 

 The most significant issue is the 4m access lane required from the south-west townhouse 
area which could be linked across to Enterprise or back to McCurdy across the creek. This 
4m access could be a multi use trail for hiking biking and walking.  

 Additionally because this project is in a recognized interface area with one way in and 
one way out along with slower fire response times by a secondary fire apparatus, the Fire 
Department suggests the developer install fire protection sprinklers in all the premises. 

6.5 FortisBC 

 See attached letter dated September 21, 2011.  

6.6 FortisBC – Gas 

 Prior to final application Approval, the applicants will need to contact FortisBC at 1-866-
436-7847  and quote the COK File#Z11-0069, DP11-0152, OCP11-0011, TA11-0010; 2755 
McCurdy Rd to initiate arrangements for the development of an electrical service plan for 
the development which may include granting of rights of ways where required and that it 
is the developer's responsibility to ensure that all of FortisBC's requirements including 
construction fees have been addressed prior to final Approval.   

 Of additional note, is the location of the overhead 138 kilovolt transmission facilities 
adjacent to Highway 97 relative to trees or growth in the proposed P3 area may need to 
be addressed? Appropriate clearances with overhead electrical conductors must be 
maintained with all vegetation and any future buildings. 

6.7 Interior Health Authority 

 This proposal has been significantly reduced from the original 2009 application of a 1500 
units to the proposed 314 units. In addition, the voluntary land dedication of 68% of the 
total parcel allows for greater protection of environmentally sensitive land. 

 The pledge to include 17 covenanted affordable housing units will create housing options 
for seniors and young families, two population groups in need of core affordable housing 
and aligns with the population health concepts endorsed by Interior Health. 

 Interior Health is in support of this application. 

39



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 14 

 
 

6.8 Irrigation District 

 Black Mountain Irrigation District can service the site, however we are recommending that 
the fire protection from Dilworth Summit Reservoir seriously be considered by the City. 

6.9 Ministry of Transportation 

 Preliminary Approval is granted for the rezoning for one year pursuant to section 52(3)(a) 
of the Transportation Act, subject to the following condition: 

o When the city is preparing to add network road connections to COMC and/or extension 
of McCurdy Road, through these subject lands, the Ministry be included in the planning 
and implementation of such roads with respect to their connection to Highway 97 
(Harvey Avenue). 

6.10 RCMP 

 No comments. 

6.11 Real Estate & Building Services 

 No comments. 

6.12 School District No. 23 

 No comments. 

6.13 Shaw 

 No comments. 

6.14 Subdivision 

 All parcels created by subdivision (assuming that one is required) will require legal road 
frontage. 

 Parcels subdivided that are on or adjacent to land designated ALR may require 
applications to the ALC. 

 Covenants for steep slopes/ESA's will be registerable at subdivision. 

 Land transfers to the City will require coordination with the applicant and city solicitors 
and the City's Real Estate Branch. 

6.15 Telus 

 TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development. Developer will be required 
to supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy. 

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: August 24, 2011 

40



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 15 

 
 

Advisory Planning Commission:  September 13, 2011 

 The Advisory Planning Commission (APC) supported the application and commented that the 
proposal is a sensitive integration of development on a hillside; however, the Commission 
encouraged the Applicant to work further with staff to address concerns relating to traffic 
volume and safety.   

 The APC encouraged staff to look into the advancement in priority of the McCurdy Road 
extension.  The APC also noted that the Applicant's affordable housing component and the 
dedication of sizeable lands to the City were critical considerations to support the 
application. 

Agricultural Advisory Committee: May 17, 2012 

 The subject application was presented to the Provincial Agriculture Land Commission (ALC) at 
a meeting in May, 2012. With positive recommendations from both City Council and the 
Agricultural Advisory Committee, ALC approved the application. The meeting minutes state 
that the subject site is unsuitable for agricultural development. 

Public Consultation: June 17, 2014 

  

Report prepared by: 

 

 

     
James Moore, Long Range Planning Manager 
Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director 
     Community Planning & Real Estate 
 
  

 

 

Attachments:   

Subject Property Map 
Map “A” – Proposed OCP Amendment  
Map “B” – Proposed Zoning 
Preliminary Site Plan 
Preliminary Site Plan with Physical Constraints 
Preliminary Landscape Plan (north) 
Preliminary Landscape Plan (south) 
Conceptual Sections and Elevations 

41



OCP11-0011/Z11-0069/TA11-0010 – Page 16 

 
 

Density Transfer Plan 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan 
Visual Impact Analysis Conceptual Rendering 
DRAFT RHM4 – Hillside Cluster Multiple Housing Zone 
Proposed Housing Agreement 
Proposed Restrictive Covenant  
Development Engineering Memorandum, dated June 5, 2013 
Fortis BC letter, dated September 21, 2011 

 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 2nd, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (TC) 

Application: Z13-0030 

Owner: 

 

 

 

Watermark Developments Ltd., 
(Inc. No. BC0642787) 

City of Kelowna 

Aberdeen Hall Senior School 
Society, (Inc. No. S005022) 

Address: 

 

 

South of Academy Way 

890 – 950 Academy Way 

823 Academy Way 

Applicant: Watermark Developments Ltd. 

Subject: Rezoning  

Existing OCP Designation: Agriculture, Park & Open Space, Multiple Unit Residential 

Proposed OCP Designation: Agriculture, Park & Open Space, Multiple Unit Residential 

Existing Zones: 
A1 – Agricultural, P3- Parks & Open Space, RM5 – Medium 
Density Multiple Housing 

Proposed Zones: A1 – Agricultural, P3- Parks & Open Space, RM5 – Medium 
Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0030 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of: 
 
1. Part of the North East ¼ of Section 3 Township 23 ODYD Except Plans EPP33993 and 
EPP36884 located at 823 Academy Way;  
 
2. Part of Lot A Section 3 Township 23 ODYD Plan EPP33993 “see plan as to limited access”, 
located (S of) Academy Way; and 
 
3.        Part of Lot C Section 3 Township 23 ODYD Plan EPP33993 “see plan as to limited access”, 
located (S of) Academy Way; and 
 
from the A1 - Agriculture 1 to P3 - Parks and Open Space, P3 - Parks and Open Space to A1 - 

92



Z13-0030 – Page 2 

 
 

Agriculture 1, RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing to A1 - Agriculture 1, RM5 – Medium Density 
Multiple Housing to P3 Parks and Open Space, P3 – Parks and Open Space to RM5 – Medium Density 
Multiple Housing, A1 - Agriculture 1 to RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing  as shown Map 
“A1” attached to the report of Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services, dated June 26th, 
2014, be considered by Council; 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0030 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of: 
 
1. Part of Lot 1 Sections 3 and 10 Township 23 ODYD Plan EPP38015 (limited access as to part 
formerly Lot B Plan EPP33993) located at 890-950 Academy Way; 
 
2. Part of Lot A Section 3 Township 23 ODYD Plan EPP33993 “see plan as to limited access”, 
located (S of) Academy Way; and 
 
3.        Part of Lot C Section 3 Township 23 ODYD Plan EPP33993 “see plan as to limited access”, 
located (S of) Academy Way; and 
 
from the A1 - Agriculture 1 to P3 - Parks and Open Space and P3 - Parks and Open Space to A1 - 
Agriculture 1 as shown Map “A2” attached to the report of Subdivision, Agriculture & 
Environment Services, dated June 26th, 2014, be considered by Council; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration. 

2.0 Purpose 

To rezone portions of the subject properties in order to accommodate the future development of 
single and multi family developments and a large natural open space park. 

3.0  Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Department 

Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment staff is supportive of the requested approval to rezone 
small sections of the University South neighborhood.  This proposal is seen as an administrative 
exercise to reflect the more detailed line work that resulted in the previous subdivision 
application. 

Given the largely undeveloped surrounding context, staff believes that the neighbour notification 
was adequately satisfied through the previous public notification process which included posting 
of Development Application signage. 

4.0  Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In February 2014, a four (4) lot block plan subdivision was registered on the parent parcel that 
included the dedication of a large park (gully area) to the City of Kelowna.  

  

4.2 Project Description 

This application is to rezone parts of the subject properties required to facilitate the 
development of the next phase of the University South development and ensure land uses align 
appropriately with newly created subdivision line work.  The previous subdivision resulted in a 

93



Z13-0030 – Page 3 

 
 

significant gain in P3 land and will ensure the long term protection of steep terrain, a north south 
wildlife corridor and a significant natural area park.  The proposal is in general accordance with 
the University South Area Structure Plan (2009).   
 
 
4.3 Site Context 
 
The subject property is located on the north facing slope of the developing University South Area, 
on the east side of Academy Way south of Aberdeen Hall, and south of John Hindle Drive and the 
UBC Okanagan campus.  
 

Presently, the adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
A1 – Agricultural Zone 
P2 – Institutional 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 

Resource Protection 
Educational / Institutional 
Multiple Unit Residential 

East 

C3 - Parks and Open Space 
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 
RM4 – Transitional Low Density Housing 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 

Community Commercial 
Multiple Unit Residential 
Multiple Unit Residential 
Multiple Unit Residential 

South A1 – Agricultural Zone Resource Protection 

West A1 – Agricultural Zone Resource Protection 

 
Subject Properties Map: South of Academy Way 

  
 
 
 
 
 

94



Z13-0030 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Suburbs.1 Support a mix of uses within Kelowna’s suburbs.  

Environmentally Sensitive Area Linkages.2 Ensure that development activity does not 
compromise the ecological function of environmentally sensitive areas and maintains the 
integrity of plant and wildlife corridors.  

6.0       Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Refer to attached Development Engineering Memorandum. 

6.3 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.4 Glenmore Ellison Irrigation District (GEID) 

Refer to attached GEID letter. 

6.5 FortisBC (Electric) 

No concerns. 

6.6 FortisBC (Gas) 

Refer to attached memorandum. 

6.7 Telus 

No comment. 

6.8 Shaw Cable 

Approves of rezoning. 

6.9 Interior Health 

Interests uneffected. 

6.10 RCMP 

No comment. 

 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.15.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

95



Z13-0030 – Page 5 

 
 

Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: July 9, 2013 
Subdivision Approved:  December 13, 2013 
Subdivision Registered:  February 13, 2013 
OCP Amendment Adopted:  May 27, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

      
Todd Cashin 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services Manager 
 
 
Approved for Inclusion: 
 

 Shelley Gambacort, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Director 

 

Attachments: 

Map A1 
Map A2 
Subject Property Map 

96



97



98



99



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 14, 2014 

RIM No. 1200-70 

To: City Manager 

From: Policy & Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 Owner: Various 

Address: Hospital Area (See Attachment 1) Applicant: City of Kelowna 

Title: 
Official Community Plan Amendment, Zoning Bylaw Amendment and Sign 
Bylaw Amendment  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Proposed OCP Designation: 
HLTH – Health District 
EDINST – Educational / Major Institutional  

Existing Zone: 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RU1c – Large Lot Housing with Carriage House 
RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: No change 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-0014 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of the subject properties identified in Attachment 1 from the S2RES – Single / Two 
Unit Residential designation to the HLTH – Health District designation, as shown on Map #1 
attached to the Report of the Policy & Planning Department dated July 14, 2014, be considered 
by Council; 

AND THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-0014 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of Lot 1 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3451, located on 2303 Abbott Street, Kelowna, 
BC from the S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential designation to the EDINST – Educational / Major 
Institutional designation, as shown on Map #1 attached to the Report of the Policy & Planning 
Department dated July 14, 2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-0014 to amend Map 5.8 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by adding the Revitalization 
Development Permit Area Designation to the subject properties identified in Attachment 1 as 
shown on Map #2 attached to the Report of the Policy & Planning Department dated July 14, 
2014, be considered by Council; 

100



OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 – Page 2 

 
 

AND THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw No. OCP14-0014 to amend Kelowna 2030 – Official 
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by revising the definition of ‘Health District’ as outlined in the 
Report of the Policy & Planning Department dated July 14, 2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment No. TA14-0010 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw 
No. 8000, by adding the Health District 3 – Health Services Transitional zone in Section 17; adding 
definitions for Health Services, Major, Supportive Housing, Minor, and Supportive Housing, Major 
in Section 2, adding a new Level 2 landscape buffer in Section 7, and revising Table 8.1 – Parking 
Schedule to include Health Services, Major and Minor in Section 8 as outlined in the Report of the 
Policy & Planning Department dated July 14, 2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Amendment No. 21 to Sign Bylaw No. 8235 be forwarded for reading consideration; 

AND THAT Council considers the Public Information Session public process to be appropriate 
consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined in the 
Report of the Policy & Planning Department dated July 14, 2014; 

AND FURTHER THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and the Text 
Amendment Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a proposal to change the Official Community Plan Future Land Use designations for 
select properties to the north and south of the Kelowna General Hospital campus to create a 
Health Services Transitional designation.  To accompany this designation, it is proposed to 
introduce a Health District 3 – Health Services Transitional zone in order to allow low-impact, 
health service uses to create a transitional area between Kelowna General Hospital and the 
established residential neighbourhoods in the surrounding area. 

3.0 Policy & Planning 

This planning exercise was initiated in response to the impact of Kelowna General Hospital (KGH) 
activities on the surrounding residential neighbourhood, particularly concerning building 
interface, emergency access and parking. The Centennial Building, associated helipad and 
Emergency Department, as well as the new parking lot on the north side of Royal Avenue are all 
necessary operational improvements; however, they have impacted livability for area residents 
and present a challenging interface. Additionally, the parkades on the south side of the KGH 
campus have resulted in interface concerns with adjacent properties along Christleton Avenue, 
which are separated by only a lane. The areas both north and south of KGH present an 
opportunity for low-impact health services uses to create a transitional zone between KGH and 
the established residential neighbourhoods. 

As outlined in the OCP, the Health District designation is intended for development that is 
supportive of KGH or other health administration operations, health education, patient services 
or care facility operation, within the current boundary east of Pandosy Street. The long-term 
goal is to direct complimentary health services uses to this area with eventual connectivity to the 
Cottonwoods Care Centre. The purpose of this Phase 1 Hospital Area Interface planning exercise 
is to review uses and boundaries for the blocks immediately north and south of the KGH campus 
and to establish defined interface boundaries.  The goal is to preserve the integrity of the 
adjacent residential areas while allowing a transitional use and building form that is compatible 
with the established residential character, with more intensive uses and developments 
concentrated east of Pandosy Street. 

The Health District 3 (HD3) – Health Services Transitional Zone would allow for small-scale health 
services that are generally compatible with residential land uses and building form, which will be 

101



OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 – Page 3 

 
 

capable of being located in a neighbourhood setting. Building design shall reflect the scale and 
context of nearby residential areas. 

The Phase 1 study area is bounded by Glenwood Avenue to the north, Pandosy Street to the east, 
the properties on the south side of Christleton Avenue to the south (inclusive of those 
properties), and Abbott Street to the west1. A survey was delivered to property owners in this 
area in February 2014 to gather feedback regarding the potential boundary for the HD3 zone 
along with the specific land use regulations. Property owners were also invited to a 
neighbourhood meeting in April 2014 to further discuss and refine the proposed regulations. Staff 
considered public and stakeholder input when evaluating a final boundary recommendation for 
the designation and zoning regulations. 

Through the Hospital Area Planning exercise, the Future Land Use designation for 2303 Abbott 
Street was given consideration, as it is bordered on three sides by properties designated 
Educational / Major Institutional. To create a contiguous designation and allow for context 
appropriate use of this area in the long-term, it is proposed that the Future Land Use designation 
change to Educational / Major Institutional. 

In summary, the proposed boundaries and zone regulations have been arrived at based on 
consideration of: addressing significant interface issues; preserving the integrity of the 
residential neighbourhoods; and identifying appropriate transitional uses, built form and 
character that are sensitive to the residential character of the area. Residents and stakeholders 
provided input and feedback during the study process, which helped to inform how to create a 
transitional buffer from KGH activities to the surrounding area. The OCP Health District 
designation boundary is intended to clearly define the area to be considered for the HD3 zone; by 
limiting the extent of the HD3 zone, the additional impact to the residential neighbourhoods is 
anticipated to be minimized. This will assist with maintaining the integrity of the residential 
neighbourhoods and the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area (HCA) while allowing for 
transitional buffer zones with low-impact health services uses. Other health services uses will be 
directed to the Health District east of Pandosy Street. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

Staff presented reports to Council on July 29, 2013, December 16, 2013 and June 23, 2014 
seeking direction to proceed with the Hospital Area Planning exercise intended to resolve 
transitional land use issues in neighbourhoods adjacent to KGH.  

Major steps in the study process to date have included: 

 July 29, 2013: Council support to proceed with the Hospital Area Planning exercise, 
including meeting with Interior Health (IH); 

 September 20, 2013: Staff meeting with IH to discuss neighbourhood interface issues and 
intent for IH-owned properties; 

 December 16, 2013: Council update and support received to proceed with Phase 1 of the 
study; 

 February 2014: Resident survey regarding the proposed HD3 zone and boundaries;  

 February 25, 2014: Staff meeting with Interior Health to discuss KGH Campus Planning 
vision and growth strategy; 

                                                
1 See Attachment 4 

102



OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 – Page 4 

 
 

 March 3, 2014:  Meeting with Kelowna Planning Director of the BC Cancer Clinic to discuss 
future planning needs of this facility; 

 April 9, 2014: Neighbourhood Public Open House meeting to gather additional input on the 
details of the proposed HD3 zone and boundaries; 

 April 10, 2014:  Residents’ Association Meeting (FRAHCAS, KSAN and KLOCNA Associations) 
to discuss the merits of the proposed boundaries and HD3 zone; and 

 June 23, 2014: Council update and support received to proceed with the Health District 
designation boundary and introduction of the HD3 zone. 

Staff have been in consultation with stakeholders and affected property owners throughout the 
study and have taken into the consideration their suggestions to define the boundaries and land 
use regulations of the HD3 zone. 

4.2 Review of Best Practices 

Staff conducted a review of best practices and zoning guidelines for similar hospital campuses 
that are surrounded primarily by residential uses. The hospitals considered were Vancouver 
General Hospital (Vancouver, BC), City Hospital (Saskatoon, SK) and the Children’s and Women’s 
Health Centre of British Columbia (Vancouver, BC). These hospitals are in neighbourhoods of low-
density residential, multi-residential and/or local commercial uses with building heights ranging 
from one and two storey residential and office buildings to high-rise residential buildings. The 
Children’s and Women’s Health Centre of British Columbia is most similar to KGH in its 
relationship to the surrounding residential area, with a local road acting as the separation 
between the hospital campus and the surrounding low-density residential area. Based on this 
review, the uses that were ultimately considered for the proposed HD3 zone are scaled back in 
terms of built form and use to be site-specific and context sensitive. 

4.3 Interior Health Authority 

On September 20, 2013, staff met with IH representatives to discuss interface issues and to 
identify IH-owned properties and their intentions for future use. 

IH acknowledged that development on their properties on Christleton Avenue would likely need 
to be of a nature that complemented the single family residential uses of the surrounding 
properties, although they do not currently have plans or funding to expand on these properties. 
Parking remains an important concern for IH, but there are currently no plans for parking 
expansion. However, Staff reinforced that future parking for this area will be encouraged to be in 
the Health District area east of Pandosy Street. A more comprehensive review of parking 
demands, once the buildings currently under construction are completed and in operation, would 
be beneficial. 

In follow-up to the September 2013 meeting, Staff met with IH representatives on February 25, 
2014 to further discuss the future use of properties, parking needs and the status of the KGH 
Master Plan. 

IH indicated they are focusing land acquisitions in the area east of Pandosy Street between Royal 
Avenue and Rose Avenue. With a current parking shortage of 275 spaces, IH intends to use the 
west side of Speer Street for parking in the future. IH is currently holding the five properties they 
own on Christleton Avenue and does not anticipate acquiring more properties in this area.  

Further expansion at KGH is expected in terms of employee growth, rather than building 
expansion and the focus will be on re-tasking existing space rather than adding new space. The 
Heart and Surgical Centre will be the last building constructed as part of the current expansion 

103



OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 – Page 5 

 
 

program with completion expected in fall 2015. Additional office space is needed, but can be 
located off-site from KGH. 

4.4 Neighbourhood Associations 

Friends and Residents of the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area Society (FRAHCAS) 
and Kelowna South-Central Association of Neighbourhoods (KSAN) 

Part of the Hospital Area Plan study area is within the Abbott Street HCA and the Friends and 
Residents of the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area Society (FRAHCAS) provided a letter2 
dated June 5, 2013 stating their preliminary position on the study. FRAHCAS presented several 
options which staff considered to address the interface, traffic and parking issues that are 
increasingly impacting residents’ quality of life. 

Following the public consultation in April 2014, FRAHCAS and KSAN provided a joint letter3 dated 
April 12, 2014 with some additional considerations for the Hospital Area Plan. They generally 
support the proposed form and character details of the HD3 zone, including a building height 
limit of two and a half storeys, with an option for three storeys only where there is a need for 
surface parking with two storeys above. They stated the need to provide adequate parking to 
keep vehicles from parking on residential roads. 

FRAHCAS and KSAN expressed their support for the inclusion of the north side of Christleton 
Avenue in the Hospital Area Planning exercise and the HD3 zone to provide guidance for future 
development and give property owners certainty and permanency about allowed uses in the area. 
Notably, they remain firm to fielding health-related commercial interests outside of the HD3 
boundary and to be directed to the HD2 zone east of Pandosy Street.  This direction already 
established in the OCP will allow a concentration of uses to be established, and to allow 
sequential growth east as the area builds out and provides the long-term land use connection to 
the Cottonwoods site. 

KLO Central Neighbourhood Association (KLOCNA) 

The KLO Central Neighbourhood Association (KLOCNA) provided a letter4 dated April 16, 2014 
indicating their support for the HD3 zone along Royal Avenue from Long Street to Pandosy Street, 
with the rear lane as the northern boundary. They generally support the form and character 
guidelines as well as principle and secondary uses allowed in this zone. KLOCNA suggested the 
maximum building height be three storeys to allow for surface parking, consistent with other 
buildings on Royal Avenue and Pandosy Street. They also recommended that all structural 
facades be required to meet the general form and character bylaws of surrounding 
neighbourhoods.  

KLOCNA encourages clearly defined uses and boundaries for each of the Health District zones to 
allow for coordinated, long-term planning in the area, including parking and transit 
improvements. 

4.5 Public Consultation 

In February 2014 residents within the Phase 1 study area were sent a survey that was available 
both online and in hard copy to be sent back to the City. This survey was to gauge neighbourhood 
opinion on possible boundaries for the HD3 zone, as well as determine compatible land uses and 
regulations for this unique interface. 

                                                
2 See Attachment 5 
3 See Attachment 6 
4 See Attachment 7 

104



OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 – Page 6 

 
 

Of approximately 90 household surveys that were sent, 42 responses were received. The 
following is an overview of the feedback: 

 The majority of respondents support locating health services uses east of Pandosy Street, 
and there is modest support for locating HD3 uses within small areas both to the north and 
south of the hospital; 

 The majority of respondents support the following uses in the HD3 zone: bed & breakfasts 
(88%), low-density housing (78%), health services (75%), minor home-based businesses 
(70%), carriage houses (69%), supportive housing (64%) and lodging house (57%); 

 The majority of respondents agree that the maximum height of new housing, and any 
potential buildings in the area, should remain at two and a half storeys; 

 The majority of respondents (80%) support mixed-use buildings; 

 The majority of respondents do not support reduced parking requirements; and 

 The majority of respondents support design guidelines in the proposed HD3 zone. 

In follow-up to the survey, a neighbourhood meeting was held at City Hall on April 9, 2014. There 
were 28 residents in attendance at this meeting, and through an informal poll the majority of 
attendees support a boundary for the new HD3 zone that includes the block of houses adjacent to 
the new parking lot on Royal Avenue, and the houses immediately abutting the hospital along the 
north side of Christleton Avenue. Attendees indicated their support for a clearly defined 
boundary to prevent health services uses from expanding further into the residential area. 
Attendees generally agreed that the proposed built form of the draft zone were appropriate. 

Property owners within the study area were sent a letter dated June 25, 2014 to provide them 
with an update regarding the Phase 1 Hospital Area Plan and draft HD3 zone. The letter indicated 
upcoming opportunities to provide input on the recommendations directly to Council and 
included a map showing the proposed Health District designation boundaries.  

Following receipt of this letter, staff received correspondence from the property owner of 2303 
Abbott Street requesting inclusion in the recommended Health District designation to allow for 
smaller scale health services as a transition from institutional uses to residential areas, while 
maintaining the residential character and liveability of Abbott Street. Although this designation 
would create a transitional buffer towards Abbott Street, the subject property would still be 
surrounded by Institutional uses, thus limiting future land use and redevelopment opportunities 
on both this site and the property immediately to the south (currently designated Educational / 
Major Institutional). A contiguous Educational / Major Institutional designation is appropriate to 
allow for context appropriate use of this area in the long-term that remains sensitive to the 
residential character along Abbott Street. 

4.6 Neighborhood Park 

Staff considered residents’ requests for a park in the study area as a buffer from KGH activities 
and the parking lot on Royal Avenue. One option examined was to create an urban park at the 
base of Long Street immediately north of Royal Avenue, restricting vehicular access between the 
two roads. This park could create a neighbourhood amenity and buffer from KGH while 
maintaining pedestrian and cycling access between Royal Avenue and the area to the north. By 
restricting through traffic at this location, vehicles would be directed to Pandosy Street. 

Review of this option presented several concerns related to traffic flow and emergency access to 
KGH. The intersection of Royal Avenue and Pandosy Street is not currently signalized and left 
turn movements from Royal Avenue can be difficult due to traffic volumes on Pandosy Street. A 

105



OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 – Page 7 

 
 

signalized intersection at this location has been approved and will assist with traffic flow. 
Ambulances often use Long Street to access the KGH Emergency Department when Pandosy 
Street is experiencing high traffic volumes. With restricted access at Long Street, emergency and 
other vehicles could experience additional delays or use Abbott Street as an alternate route, 
creating an undesirable situation given the goal of moving traffic east of this area. 

The creation of an urban park at this location is not recommended at this time due to the traffic 
issues and safety concerns for emergency vehicles. This option can be considered in the future 
once the intersection of Royal Avenue and Pandosy Street is signalized and Royal Avenue is 
realigned with access through to Richter Street. 

4.7 Project Description 

Incorporating feedback from area residents, stakeholders and Council, staff have prepared 
boundary recommendations and proposed zoning regulations for the Hospital Transition Area, as 
follows. 

The Health District designation boundary is proposed for an area north of KGH along Royal 
Avenue between Long Street and Pandosy Street, and an area south of KGH along the north side 
of Christleton Avenue between the lane access and Pandosy Street. The Educational / Major 
Institutional designation is proposed for 2303 Abbott Street, immediately west of KGH. Map #1 
shows the proposed changes to the Future Land Use designations. 

The subject properties would also be added to the Revitalization Development Permit Area as per 
Chapter 14 of the OCP, which requires that a development permit addressing design guidelines 
must be approved for properties that are zoned for health district. Map #2 shows the proposed 
changes to the Revitalization Development Permit Areas. 

The proposal includes an amendment to Chapter 4 of the OCP to reflect the transitional nature of 
the area west of Pandosy Street. 

The proposed HD3 zone would allow for supportive and low-impact health services uses that are 
compatible with residential land uses and of a built form and character that reflects the scale 
and context of nearby residential areas . The uses, regulations and design guidelines encourage a 
transitional buffer from KGH to the surrounding neighbourhoods that is sensitive to the 
residential character of the area. 

The City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 would be amended to introduce the HD3 zone and 
associated regulations and definitions in Sections 2, 7, 8 and 17. The City of Kelowna Sign Bylaw 
No. 8235 would be amended to include the sign regulations for the HD3 zone. 

4.8 Site Context 

There are a total of 27 subject properties, located in three groupings around the main KGH 
campus (see Subject Property Map): six properties to the north front on Royal Avenue and 
Pandosy Street; 20 properties to the south front on Christleton Avenue and Pandosy Street; and 
one property to the west fronts on Abbott Street. All the subject properties are currently 
designated S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential and are zoned for residential uses (RU1, RU1C 
and RU2). 

The properties to the north of KGH are all zoned RU1 – Large Lot Housing and are within the 
Abbott Street HCA. The new KGH parking being developed on Royal Avenue is located between 
the subject properties fronting on Royal Avenue and those fronting on Pandosy Street. The 
parking lot is designated EDINST – Educational / Major Institutional and zoned P1 – Major 
Institutional. Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

106



OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 – Page 8 

 
 

Orientation Land Use Designation Zoning Land Use 

North 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit 
Residential 

RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

East 

MRL – Multiple Unit 
Residential (Low Density) 

RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

Collett Manor development 
proposal would be HLTH – 
Health District 

Proposed Collett Manor 
development proposal would 
be HD2 – Hospital & Health 
Support Services 

Proposed Collett Manor 
development proposal would 
be institutional, commercial 
and residential uses 

South 
EDINST – Educational / Major 
Institutional 

HD1 – Kelowna General 
Hospital 

Kelowna General Hospital 
(Centennial Building) 

West 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit 
Residential 

RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

The properties to the south of KGH are primarily zoned RU1, with four properties zoned RU1c – 
Large Lot Housing with Carriage House, and two properties zoned RU2 – Medium Lot Housing. 
Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Land Use Designation Zoning Land Use 

North 
EDINST – Educational / Major 
Institutional 

HD1 – Kelowna General 
Hospital 

Kelowna General Hospital 
(Parkades) 

East HLTH – Health District RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

South 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit 
Residential 

RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Residential 

West 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit 
Residential 

RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RU1c – Large Lot Housing 
with Carriage House 

Residential 

The property at 2303 Abbott Street is zoned RU1 with adjacent land uses as follows: 

Orientation Land Use Designation Zoning Land Use 

North 
EDINST – Educational / Major 
Institutional 

HD1 – Kelowna General 
Hospital 

Kelowna General Hospital 
(Surface Parking) 

East 
EDINST – Educational / Major 
Institutional 

HD1 – Kelowna General 
Hospital 

Kelowna General Hospital 
(Parkades) 

South 
EDINST – Educational / Major 
Institutional 

RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
Residential (currently 
vacant) 

West 
PARK – Major Park and Open 
Space 

RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

  

107



OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 – Page 9 

 
 

Subject Property Map:  

 

4.9 Proposed Zoning Regulations   

The proposed HD3 zone subdivision and development regulations are summarized below, with the 
existing Health District 2 (HD2) – Hospital and Health Support Services zone regulations shown for 
comparison. The complete proposed regulations are shown in Attachment 8. 

Zoning Comparison Table 

CRITERIA Proposed HD3 Requirements Existing HD2 Requirements 

 
Properties 

north of KGH 
Properties 

south of KGH 

Properties with 
lot area of 

900m2 or more 

Properties with 
lot area less 
than 900m2 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Minimum Lot Area 490m2 490m2 900m2 490m2 

Maximum Lot Area n/a 1800m2 n/a n/a 

Lot Width 13.0m 13.0m 30.0m 13.0m 

Lot Depth 30.0m 30.0m 30.0m 30.0m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.5* 0.5 1.2** n/a 

Site Coverage 50%* 50%* 55% 55% 

Height 
9.5m or 2 ½ 

storeys* 
9.5m or 2 ½ 

storeys* 
16.5m 

9.5m or 2 ½ 
storeys** 

Front Yard 4.5m 4.5m 4.5m 4.5m 

Side Yard 2.0-2.3m* 2.0-2.3m* 4.5-6.0m** 2.0-2.3m** 

Rear Yard 6.0m* 6.0m* 6.0m** 6.0m** 

*Exceptions apply, see Attachment 8 for full regulations 

**Exceptions apply, see City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, Section 17 for details 

 

108



OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 – Page 10 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Heritage Conservation Areas.5 Continue to recognize the established heritage conservation areas 
of Abbott Street and Marshall Street as identified on Map 9.1. 

Health Care Facilities.6 Support the extension of services and appropriate building expansions of 
the Kelowna General Hospital and other health care facilities, as provided for on the Generalized 
Future Land Use Map 4.1. The form and character of future expansions should be compatible with 
the surrounding neighbourhood context. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Development Engineering Department 

Some transportation infrastructure improvements are needed to facilitate the development of 
health services uses in the proposed health district designation area. IH is completing 
urbanization of Royal Avenue; therefore further significant road upgrades are not anticipated for 
these select few properties.   

A Traffic Impact Review was completed to identify improvements required along Christleton 
Avenue and surrounding road network. Recommendations include eventual realignment of the 
east end of the lane north of Christleton Avenue to Rose Avenue, and upgrading Christleton 
Avenue to a full urbanized standard. 

Improvement costs will be shared among the properties on the north side of Christleton Avenue 
within the Health District designation as they redevelop. The cash levy will be applied as 
property owners apply to rezone to HD3 to allow for low-impact health services uses. Based on an 
average property size of 800m2, the estimated average cost to property owners for these 
upgrades is $20,500, which includes full frontage improvements.  (Additional details are provided 
in Attachment 9: Development Engineering Memorandum). 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    D. Noble-Brandt, Department Manager, Policy & Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion  D. Gilchrist, Divisional Director of Community Planning &  
Real Estate 

 
 
 
 

                                                
5 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.7.4 (Development Process Chapter) 
6 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.32.10 (Development Process Chapter) 

109



OCP14-0014 / TA14-0010 – Page 11 

 
 

Attachments:  

Attachment 1 – List of Subject Properties 
Attachment 2 – Map #1 Proposed OCP Map 4.1 Future Land Use Amendments 
Attachment 3 – Map #2 Proposed OCP Map 5.8 Revitalization DP Area Amendments 
Attachment 4 – Map #3 Hospital Area Plan Phase 1 Study Area 
Attachment 5 – FRAHCAS Position Letter, June 5, 2013 
Attachment 6 – FRAHCAS and KSAN Position Letter, April 12, 2014 
Attachment 7 – KLOCNA Position Letter, April 16, 2014 
Attachment 8 – Proposed Health District 3 (HD3) Zone 
Attachment 9 – Development Engineering Memorandum 

110



ATTACHMENT 1: Legal Descriptions, Civic Addresses and Zoning 

Legal Plan Civic Address Current Zoning 

Lot 3 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP7535 2178 Pandosy Street RU1 

Lot 1 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3451 2303 Abbott Street RU1 

Lot 11 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP2553 2332 Pandosy Street RU1 

Lot 2 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP12868 2340 Pandosy Street RU1 

Lot 6 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3451 332-334 Christleton Avenue RU1C 

Lot 7 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3451 344 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 8 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3451 354 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 9 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3451 364 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 10 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3451 372 Christleton Avenue RU1C 

Lot 11 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3451 382 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 12 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3451 392 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 4 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP4366 398 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 3 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP4366 406 Christleton Avenue RU1C 

Lot 21 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3393 408 Royal Avenue RU1 

Lot 2 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP4366 412 Christleton Avenue RU1C 

Lot 22 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3393 416 Royal Avenue RU1 

Lot 1 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP4366 420 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 23 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3393 426 Royal Avenue RU1 

Lot 2 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP2553 428 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 24 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP3393 430 Royal Avenue RU1 

Lot A District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP60634 432 Christleton Avenue RU2 

Lot B District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP60634 442 Christleton Avenue RU2 

Lot B District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP7206 452 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 13 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP2553 462 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 12 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP2553 474 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 1 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP12868 480 Christleton Avenue RU1 

Lot 4 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan KAP7535 480 Royal Avenue RU1 

 

111



PA
ND

OS
Y S

T

AB
BO

TT
ST

AB
BO

TT
 ST

ROYAL AVE

BIRCH AVE

GLENWOOD AVE

CHRISTLETON AVE

LO
NG

 S
T

ROBIN WAY

ROSE AVE

TAYLOR CR

ATWOOD PL

ROSE AVE

2251-2312

2

3

2251

3

4

2290

1

2

1

2124
434

330

359343329

420

409

343

377

4

2136

406

409

2189

2179

384

2150

33120

428

461

18 19

465

477453

462452 474

475

443385

471
421

481

429
2368

408 416 426 4302195

2332

2110

2415

4542127

423

2120

361

380

381371

350 360

351

370 390

341

340

320

551

412 442432420

405

17

398

322

382 392

2410

2185

461

478

425

2340

372

480

480

559

342

330

470460 478

491

341

2405

422416404 410

413

366352

2175
2166

315

2178

435

378

445

466

451

455 459

471 481427

540

364

2405

354344

581

2125

2360

2165

310

544

544

559

567543

545

534

419

558528

2178

490

529

2309

2359

2321

2303

2337

482

2414

2119

2109

2420
2415

2302

2394

2154

2164

2302

2374

2384

2394

2366

2395

2375

2385

2365

2384

2170

2135

2420
2415

2405

2362

2364

2188

572

471-473461-463441-443

2340

2269

2275

2283

2318

2319

2335

2169

2159

2149

589

2127

2137

2291

2311

432-434452-454

2276

2268

2284
2292

2264

2260

2252

2242

2232

2226

2210

2206

281

2343

2363

550-556

580

565-569

2158-2160

332-334
560-562

2424 2425

291

2425

2210

2228

2228

2248

CADDER AVE

Proposed OCP Map 4.1 Future Land Use Amendments
July 2014
Bylaw 10980 - Map # 1

Existing

PA
ND

OS
Y S

T

AB
BO

TT
 ST

AB
BO

TT
 ST

ROYAL AVE

BIRCH AVE

GLENWOOD AVE

CHRISTLETON AVE

LO
NG

 S
T

ROBIN WAY

ROSE AVE

TAYLOR CR

ATWOOD PL

ROSE AVE

2251-2312

2

3

2251

3

4

2290

1

2

1

2124
434

330

359343329

420

409

343

377

4

2136

406

409

2189

2179

384

2150

33120

428

461

18 19

465

477453

462452 474

475

443385

471
421

481

429
2368

408 416 426 4302195

2332

2110

2415

4542127

423

2120

361

380

381371

350 360

351

370 390

341

340

320

551

412 442432420

405

398

17

322

382 392

2410

2185

461

478

425

2340

372

480

480

559

342

470460 478

491
330

341

2405

422416404 410

413

366352

2175
2166

315

2178

435

378

445

466

451

455 459

471 481427

540

364

2405

354344

581

2125

2360

2165

310

544

544

559

567543

545

534

419

558528

490

529

2178

2309

2359

2321

2303

2337

482

2414

2119

2109

2420
2415

2394

2302

2154

2164

2302

2374

2384

2394

2366

2395

2375

2385

2365

2384

2170

2135

2420
2415

2405

2362

2364

2188

572

471-473461-463441-443

2340

2269

2275

2283

2318

2319

2335

2169

2159

2149

589

2127

2137

2291

2311

432-434452-454

2276

2268

2284
2292

2264

2260

2252

2242

2232

2226

2210

2206

281

CADDER AVE

2343

2363

550-556

580

565-569

2158-2160

332-334

560-562

577

2424 2425

291

2425

286

2210

2228

2228

2248

Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property

Future Land Use Code
Educational/Major Institutional
Health District
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
Major Park/Open Space (public)
Single / Two Unit Residential

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map4_1_FutureLanduse
\Amendments\OCP14-0014\2014-07-04_OCP14-0014_Map1_LB.mxd

Amend the OCP for the Subject Property
from Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES)
to Education/Institutional (EDINST)

Subject Property Note:
Amend the OCP for the Subject Properties
from Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES)
to Health District (HLTH)

112



PA
ND

OS
Y S

T

CADDER AVE

AB
BO

TT
ST

AB
BO

TT
ST

ROYAL AVE

BIRCH AVE

FRANCIS AVE

GLENWOOD AVE

CHRISTLETON AVE

LO
NG

 ST

SP
EE

R 
ST

ROSE AVE

TAYLOR CR

ROBIN WAY

ROSE AVE

2251-2312

330

2290

2

330
3

2251

45

3

4

1

68

2368
2
1

2150

7

2474

2124

2420

4342136

2360

343 359329

2188

2178

548

420

2166

2302
2302

409

343

377

281

16 17

406

2110

2189

2179

345

409

13

15

291

515

461

14

384

33120

428

471

411

18 19

481

551465

477453

450

2120

462452 474

440

470

572

475

350

443

371

385

286

421

604

429

408 416 426

2415

410

4302195

2332

4542127

423

464

361

380

381371

360350

351

370 390

341

340

320

412 442432420

2425

2435

405

579

398

592

322

382392

2410

486

588

2185

461

478

2248

2228
2228

440

425

2210

581

2340

315

559

372
480

460 538

480

613

342

470460 478

2420

491

341

2405

422416404

562

410

2096

413

578

366352

2175

471441 451421

569

2178

545

418-422

615605581559
341

368

435

378

445

598

466

451

461

2435

431

340-342 2450

455459

471 481427

540

2455

364

2475

2405

354344

2125

2165

310

2434

612

2414 2415

544

544

589

559 593

605

577

592

567543

606580

595

545

534

609

572

419

558528

490

529

2309

2359

2321

2303

2337

482

2470

2119
2109

2394

2154
2164

474 480
598

2374
2384
2394

2366

2076

2395

2375
2385

2365

2384

2170

2425

2135

2415
2405

2095

2362

2364

2260

2210
2226
2232
2242

2264

2252

2268
2276

2206

12

2292

2340

2284

2269
2275
2283

328

2318

348

2319

338

2169
2159
2149

2089

2127
2137

2079

2291

2311

9

2439

2424 2425

471-473
461-463441-443

450-456

550-556

2335

2343

595-597

432-434 2363

288

565-569

591-593

452-454

2158-2160

332-334

2075

596-598

560-562

2478

607

10

2094
356-358

2495

11

2089

2358

450

434

2281

4442478 454

2275

2368

458

Proposed OCP Map 5.8 Revitalization DP Area Amendments

July 2014
Bylaw 10980 - Map # 2

Existing

ABBOTT ST
2251-2312

330

2290

2

330
3

2251

45

3

4

1

68

2368
2
1

2150

7

2474

2124

2420

4342136

2360

343 359329

2188

2178

548

420

2166

2302
2302

409

343

377

281

16 17

406

2110

2189

2179

345

409

13

15

291

515

461

14

384

33120

428

471

411

18 19

481

551465

477453

450

2120

462452 474

440

470

572

475

350

443

371

385

286

421

604

429

408 416 426

2415

410

4302195

2332

4542127

423

464

361

380

381371

350 360

351

370 390

341

340

320

412 442432420

2425

2435

405

579

398

592

322

382392

2410

486

588

2185

461

478

2248

2228
2228

440

425

2210

581

2340

315

559

372
480

460 538

480

613

342

470460 478

2420

491

341

2405

422416404

562

410

2096

413

578

366352

2175

471441 451421

569

2178

545

418-422

615605581559
341

368

435

378

445

598

466

451

461

2435

431

340-342 2450

455459

471 481427

540

2455

364

2475

2405

354344

2125

2165

310

2434

612

2414 2415

544

544

589

559 593

605

577

592

567543

606580

595

545

534

609

572

419

558528

490

529

2359

2309
2321

2303

2337

482

2470

2119
2109

2394

2154
2164

474 480

2374
2384
2394

2366

598
2076

2395

2375
2385

2365

2384

2170

2425

2135

2415
2405

2095

2362

2364

2260

2210
2226
2232
2242

2264

2252

2268
2276

2206

12

2292

2340

2284

2269
2275
2283

328

2318

348

2319

338

2169
2159
2149

2089

2127
2137

2079

2291

2311

9

ROYAL AVE

BIRCH AVE

FRANCIS AVE

GLENWOOD AVE

CHRISTLETON AVE

LO
NG

 ST

SP
EE

R 
ST

ROSE AVE
ROSE AVE

TAYLOR CR

ROBIN WAY

PA
ND

OS
Y S

T

CADDER AVE

AB
BO

TT
 ST

2439

2424 2425

471-473461-463441-443

450-456

550-556

2335

2343

595-597

432-434 2363

288

565-569

614-624

597-599

591-593

452-454

2158-2160

332-334

2075

596-598

560-562

2478

607

10

616

2094 356-358

617

2495

11

2089

631

600-610

2358

450
2083

616

434

2281

4442478 454

2275

2368

458

2269
2263
2257

2497

Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property
Revitalization DP Area

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map5_8_UrbanDesign\Amendments\OCP14_0014\2014-07-04_OCP14-0014_Map2_LB.mxd

Adjust boundary of Revitalization
DP Area for a portion of properties
on OCP Map 5.8  

113



Cameron
Park

Maude
Roxby

Wetland

Strathcona
Beach
Park

Abbott
Street

Recreation
Corridor

Francis
Avenue
Beach
Access

Waterfront
Walkway
Kinsmen
Park to

Strathcona
Park

BIRCH AVE

FRANCIS AVE

ROYAL AVE

GLENWOOD AVE

ROSE AVE

BURNE AVE

LO
NG

 S
T

AB
ER

DE
EN

 S
TSP

EE
R 

ST WO
OD

LA
WN

 ST

TAYLOR CR

ROBIN WAY

ATWOOD PL

ROSE AVE

ROYAL AVE

RI
CH

TE
R 

ST

CADDER AVE

PA
ND

OS
Y 

ST

AB
BO

TT
 S

T

¯

This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified.
0 50 100Meters

Hospital Area Plan Phase 1
Proposed OCP Designations

Rev. Jun 26, 2014

AB
BO

TT
 S

T

CHRISTLETON AVE

Future Land Use Code
Education / Institutional
Health District
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
Major Park and Open Space
Single / Two Unit Residential

Proposed Health District Interface
Proposed Education / Institutional
Parks
Registered Heritage Homes
Heritage Conservation Area
Study Area

114



June 5, 2013 

 

To:  Shelley Gambacourt, Acting Director, Policy & Planning 

Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner 

Land Use Management Department 

 

From: James Avery, Pres. FRAHCAS 

 

 

Subject:  “VOX POPULI” / THREE INTER-RELATED  PROPOSALS : 

 Heritage Area Boundary Review 

 Z13-0015: Interior Health Association (IHA) Emergency Parking Lot 

 OCP/HAP13-0004:  434 Royal Ave., move or demolition request 

 

 

All of these very serious items relate to the documented interface issues pursuant to 

expansion in operations by Interior Health and as such all three suggest the need for 

concurrent consideration. It is the intent of this writer to both document and openly share 

our findings with those most interested in and directly responsible for these 

considerations.  

 

On January 28 of this year Council passed a resolution asking City staff to prepare a 

report examining the interface issues resulting from expanded operations of Kelowna 

General Hospital.   That the Interior Health Association (IHA) has a mandate to address 

the ever growing demands for medical services both within our community and beyond is 

understood.     This expansion however has severely impacted the quality of life once 

enjoyed by residential homes in this immediate area of KGH.  Particularly affected are 

those homes along Royal Ave. in close proximity to the emergency operations.  

Inevitably the economic significance of KGH operations both present day and pending 

has already and will increasingly spawn commercial development interest in this area. 

This point is duly noted in my correspondence with Mayor Walter Gray (File No. 0700-

40).  

 

The challenge then for all concerned and particularly for those of executive decision is to 

find the most appropriate compromise that balances the needs of IHA's expanded 

footprint with sensitivity to the quality of life impact for any and all residences caught up 

in this interface.   At stake is the integrity of the Heritage Conservation Area, a unique 

and prized City of Kelowna asset for residents and non-residents alike.   

 

The "buffer zone" concept tabled in January by Brian Anderson, Chair of  the 

Community Heritage Committee (CHC) was initially received by most with some 

misgivings.  This is understandable given the implications.  It is only with months of 

assessment and considerable testimonials from affected residents that this proposal is 

now received with a sense of practicality.   

 

115



This practicality flows from acceptance that the dramatic increase in traffic into this area  

and related parking issues on residential streets supports IHA’s interest in a parking lot to 

accommodate ER staff and patients, as well as a broader consideration of the impact to 

the residential quality of life in this immediate area*.    

 

* residents located on Royal Ave. and Glenwood Ave as well as Pandosy St. and Long St.. 

 

 

PROPOSED KGH EMERGENCY PARKING LOT 

 

Much of the input that informs this document culminated in a facilitated dialogue on 

April 23 with these residents deemed most affected by the proposed IHA parking lot.   

The convention of affording some weight to the thoughts of those most immediately 

affected in such a situation is well established.  Moreover these individuals have been 

experiencing the interface issues most intimately and were highly motivated to finding 

practical resolutions for same.   

 

As the facilitator of these discussions I was struck with the patience of each attendee to 

fully hear and understand the diverse positions ranging from those committed to gaining 

back some residential quality of life along side those equally committed to leaving.   

 

I wish to share for your consideration the items prepared by this amazing group.  Please 

note that each item documented was passed by consensus (i.e., this is not merely a list of 

individual requests but a list of items discussed and adopted by way of consensus).  

Moreover many of these items are intended to compliment one another (i.e., they 

should be considered in concert with one another as opposed to being considered 

severally).  
 

 A prime example of this point is to note that their acceptance of the proposed IHA 

ground level parking lot is contingent upon the following:  

 

* Long term assurance of a surface only parking lot by way of a covenant or preferably 

by way of a unique "buffer zone" code.  We propose HD3 could be created and used not 

only in this area but may be an applicable option for other points of interface between 

IHA and established residential areas.  The HD3 code proposed would allow for daytime 

only commercial operations within repurposed existing residences or new builds, limit 

new buildings to 2 1/2 stories as is currently the case, ensure new buildings design and 

landscaping would be sensitive to a residential heritage look and feel. Most importantly it 

is vital that surface parking only is a feature of any/all developments within the "buffer 

zone".   If a prospective commercial buyer in this "buffer zone" was afforded HD2 or 

other zoning that allowed for a parking facility beyond surface parking, the proposed 

covenant with IHA could be deemed prejudicial.  This alone supports the notion of a 

unique HD3 buffer zone that stipulates surface parking only for all development (i.e., 

prejudice towards none).   

 

116



* Robustly enforced Resident Only Parking (RPO) on the Royal Ave., Glenwood Ave., 

and Long Street to Glenwood Ave.. 

 

* Closure of a walkway that currently fosters pedestrian traffic between Glenwood Ave., 

and Royal Ave.. (It is understood and supported that IHA will want to acquire this same 

walkway to integrate their 3 lots for the proposed parking lot).  

 

* Various design details of the parking lot (as per attached).  These details and any 

variances required are intended to minimize negative impacts to residents in the 

immediately defined area with respect to aesthetics, noise, lighting, traffic flow, 

pedestrian traffic through yards, littering, smoking,  …  IHA has integrated many of these 

requests into the proposal most recently submitted to City Planning.  

 

Again, the comprehensive scope and depth of thought provided by this group of residents 

is most impressive.  If IHA is afforded approval of the proposed parking lot without ROP 

or without enforcement of ROP, it will be most embarrassing for all concerned to see 

ongoing parking issues on these immediate streets along side an empty parking lot.  IHA 

will require many years to amortize the $3 million plus in land and construction cost of a 

surface parking lot.   Thus ROP enforcement will be crucial to their investment return as 

well.  Support for the need of ROP as an effective solution in this area is also apparent in 

the recently published report by Urban Systems on traffic and parking issues within the 

City of Kelowna.   

 

 

PROPOSED HERITAGE CONSERVATION AREA (SOUTHERN BOUNDARY) 

 

These residents also gave serious consideration to determining the scope of the "buffer 

zone" commensurate with the concentration of interface issues.  Whereas the Emergency 

operation of KGH is the principal core of the interface issues it is accepted that the 

proposed "buffer zone" would also run on Royal Ave. from Pandosy St. to Long St. with 

the new boundary for the Heritage Conservation Area defaulting to the back lane that 

runs behind these lots.  This position also respects those residents who reside on Royal 

Ave. between Long St. and Abbott St. who have not experienced the interface issues to 

the same degree and would choose to remain RU1 residential.    

 

As indicated, it is the thoughtful list of considerations itemized by residents (see attached 

document) that has served to inform both FRAHCAS (Friends and Residents of the 

Abbott Street Conservation Society) and the broader neighbourhood society (KSAN).  

We jointly stand in support of the consensus reached by these residents.  

 

I have met regularly with Doug Levell, Realestate Services Manager, and David Fowler, 

Project Manager, et al., from IHA.   Each of the aforementioned has stated their general 

support for this consensus driven process and the resultant positions expressed.  I also 

met with Brian Anderson post the committee hearing of May 2 wherein he indicated 

support of the back lane behind Royal Ave. as the natural choice as a revised southern 

117



boundary of the Heritage Conservation Area.  I will continue to seek support beyond the 

publishing of this position paper.   

 

HAP13-0004 / 434 ROYAL AVE DISPOSITION 

 

As this address represents a registered heritage home situated on one of the 3 lots that 

IHA is intending to develop as a surface parking lot, its disposition must also be 

considered and determined concurrent with the above proposals.  In this regard I have 

had multiple discussions with Doug Levell, Realestate Services Mgr., IHA.  We 

(FRAHCAS) have put forward the notion that failing an interested party who would 

purchase this historic home outright and relocate same to a residential lot, it could 

potentially serve as basis of a commercial “tea house” in Kelowna City Park (similar to 

the very popular Tea House Restaurant located in Stanley Park, Vancouver).  It has been 

suggested that IHA would contribute an amount equal to potential demolition costs 

towards the overall cost of relocation.  Our local historian and board member, Marietta 

Lightbody has reminded us of past building relocations using a barge by way of 

Okanagan Lake (including the Eldorado Hotel).  It is at the very least conceivable that 

this home could be barged to City Park for the above repurposing.  It would create an 

historic event and a public relations event at the same time.  

 

In closing I hope that I have fulfilled my objective of preparing a position paper that 

reflects political consensus among various parties involved with these three pending 

matters: Heritage Boundary Review and Proposed Parking Lot for KGH Emergency and 

disposition of the registered heritage home (434 Royal Ave.).  I respectfully submit for 

your due consideration on all counts.  

  

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

James Avery 

FRAHCAS President 

1850 Abbott Street, Kelowna 

V1Y 1B5 

 

CC: Mayor and City Council 

 Community Heritage Committee  

 Birte Decloux, Community Sustainability Div./Land Use Mgmt. Dept. 

 Doug Levell, Realestate Serv. Mgr., IHA 

 David Fowler, Project Mgr., IHA 

 FRAHCAS  board members 

 KSAN board members 

 Residents Affected 

   

118



         April 12, 2014 

To: Danielle Noble-Brandt 

 Dept. Manager, Policy & Planning 

cc:  Lindsey Ganczar - Planner II 

 Janine Taylor - Community Engagement Advisor 

 Board Members of KSAN 

 Board Members of FRAHCAS 

 

Subject:  FRACHAS/KSAN Position Summary 

  Health District Study  

  Stakeholder Meeting at City Hall (April 10)  
 

Dear Danielle,  

 

Let us express once again our gratitude for the apparent thoughtfulness with which your 

team has undertaken the challenge of this matter. We appreciate fully the opportunity to 

participate in a dialogue intended to broaden our mutual understandings.    

 

It is the purpose of this letter to summarize and document the shared position of 

FRAHCAS/KSAN.  For the most part our position is contained in the formal Position 

Paper of June 5, 2013 and so this document may be considered an addendum to it.  The 

elements of our joint position were arrived at by way of consensus of residents and it is 

gratifying to hear that this consensus position was upheld by residents in their survey 

responses as well as your Resident Meeting of April 9 at City Hall.   

 

SECTION 17 - HEALTH DISTRICT ZONE PARAMETERS: 

Clearly your team has developed well reasoned parameters for HD3 as a transition zone 

within the Hospital District including the application of the Abbott Street and Marshall 

Street Heritage Conservation Area design guidelines.  This attention to detail and 

sensitivity to the nature of development permitted is further evident in the minimum and 

maximum lot sizing/dimensions, massing percentages, setbacks, landscaping buffers, and 

of course the itemized principal and secondary uses applicable to HD3 zoning.  Our 

initial perusal of these proposed items finds general acceptance and nothing inconsistent 

with the intended transition character sought for this zone. Our current reservations and 

thoughts are limited and follow below.  More may follow once we more fully digest these 

details however we extend our compliments to you and your team for the obvious due 

diligence inherent in their work.  

 

BUILDING HEIGHT/ONSITE PARKING: 

FRAHCAS/KSAN would like to support the prevailing consensus for an HD3 building 

height limit of 2 1/2 stories. That said, the notion you put forward that an additional 1/2 

story  (3 stories total) could allow for ground level parking on site with 2 stories of space 

above is worthy of consideration particularly in the context of the caveat that variance 

requests for same are likely.  Moreover these variance requests could invite additional 

undoing of the proposed HD3 zoning parameters.  We appreciate greatly your mention of 

this caveat.   

119



Residents in the area will be highly sensitive to additional demand for parking on 

residential streets. There may be a reasonable compromise position whereby 2 1/2 stories 

is the prescribed height limit with a 3 story limit ONLY allowed for a building design 

that dedicates the surface level of the building to parking. This proviso trades 1/2 

additional story height for dedicated parking stalls intended to keep vehicles off 

residential streets.  We would not want to support a 3 story height limit without the 

parking proviso assurance however.   

 

PROPOSED HERITAGE AREA BOUNDARY CHANGES: 

With respect to the proposed boundary changes to allow for HD3 zoning, taking homes 

out of the Abbott Heritage Conservation Area, we hold to our Position Paper parameters 

that consider only those homes situated on Royal Ave. between Pandosy and Long 

Streets. It is my understanding from you that a consensus of residents also reaffirmed this 

position at your April 9 meeting. We acknowledge that the City of Kelowna must address 

traffic issues both current and future that will involve properties in the area of Royal 

Avenue and along Pandosy Street. To date the City's plan with respect to this has not 

formed part of our discussion and this aspect has been set aside (perhaps for Phase II).  

Of course we invite the opportunity to participate on a broader discussion when all 

appropriate parties are ready to do so.  

 

DISPOSITION OF CHRISTLETON AVENUE:  

With respect to the question to include or defer Christleton Avenue for consideration of 

HD3, it must be acknowledged that 2 distinct camps exist (one for no change and the 

other favours HD3).  I should point out to you that residents on Royal Avenue began with 

a similar polarizing stance. It was stated that the rationale (in part) to defer HD3 

designation related to potential traffic flow issues as Christleton Avenue does not 

intersect cleanly with Pandosy Street in a way that would allow for a proper intersection 

as well as limitations of the rear lane.  You will recall this led our discussion to consider 

the notion of blocking off Christleton Avenue at Pandosy Street and the possible benefits 

of eliminating an intersection along Pandosy Street.  Obviously this thought prompts the 

need for further discussion and consideration by various departments and stakeholders.   

 

On this same matter, we believe there is an emotional burden overhanging those 

Christleton Avenue residents both for and against the application of HD3 zoning in not 

knowing if or when the rezoning might eventuate. If it is determined that this street of 

residents will inevitably experience the impact of KGH growth and related activities in a 

way that will diminish residential desirability then perhaps it makes sense to apply the 

HD3 zone now.  

 

There is a shortfall of parking available to meet current demand of KGH employees that 

currently numbers in the hundreds of spaces.  This does not even take into account the 

exponential growth in demand that is pending once the expanded towers are staffed, 

additional patients added and of course the multiple of visitors per patient added to the 

equation.  It is speculated that Interior Health Authority may intend the lots they currently 

hold in this area be rezoned for parkade(s).  This would certainly impact residents in the 

area. 

120



 

Rezoning Christleton Avenue to HD3 at this time allows owners of property to act from a 

place of knowing as opposed to an impending or overhanging possibility.  Moreover 

failure to apply HD3 at this time leaves the door open for properties to change hands with 

the same conflicting positions and interests mentioned above.  Commercial interests will 

undoubtedly acquire RU1 properties and increasingly advocate for HD3 status (perhaps 

HD2 or other) on a piecemeal basis.   One additional reason for doing so now in this 

scenario is that HD3 (as proposed in Section 17 - Health District Zone) reflects uses that 

have been duly considered as transitional between the hospital proper (HD1) and 

residential communities to the north and south.  We subscribe to the position that it is 

best to apply these limitations to the immediate area around the hospital concurrently so 

as to avoid requests that would not otherwise comply with the proposed HD3. 

 

Let's make it clear for all (residents, speculators, City staff, City Council alike). In this 

way commercial interests beyond the defined limitations of HD3 can then be directed to 

the designated HD2 area east of Pandosy Street.    

 

Thank you for this opportunity to share our thoughts.   

 

 

 

 

Sincerely,      Concur:  

 

 

        

James Avery     Debby Helf 

FRAHCAS President    KSAN President  

 

 

 

121



 
 

 

 

 

April 16, 2014 

 

 

Lindsey Ganczar 

Planner II 

Policy and Planning 

City Hall 

1435 Water Street, 

Kelowna, BC V1Y 1J4 

 

 

Re: Hospital Area Plan HD3 Zoning 

 

 

Dear Lindsey, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback along with other 

neighbourhood associations regarding the proposed changes to the zoning 

bylaws related to the Kelowna General Hospital area. 

 

We support the creation of a transitional zone (HD3) from the Kelowna 

General Hospital campus to the established residential neighbourhood to the 

north that would include supportive and low-impact health services. Ideally 

we would suggest that this northern area include the properties on the north 

side of Royal from Long to Pandosy using the east-west alleyway as the 

northern boundary. (See attached map) 

 

 

122



The Association, in principle, supports the form and character guidelines and 

the principal and secondary uses outlined for the proposed HD3 zone. 

However, we would recommend that the maximum building height be 

changed from 2 
1/2

 storeys to 3 storeys to facilitate ground floor parking. 

This height limit would be consistent with the 3 story building heights on 

Royal Avenue and Pandosy Street. We would also recommend that all 

structural facades of buildings constructed under HD3 bylaw be required to 

meet the general form and character bylaws of the surrounding 

neighborhoods. This would mean that laneway and driveway accessed 

ground floor parking areas would also have to be compatible with the 

general form and character of the immediately adjacent neighbourhood.  

 

In order to make the new structures compatible with the surrounding 

neighborhoods we support the proposed maximum lot area for consolidation 

of 1700 m
2
. We also support the inclusion of detailed and rigorous form and 

character regulations for any new structures constructed in the new HD3 

zone. These regulations should include provisions for permeable fencing and 

prominent entrances. We would also request a requirement for covenants to 

be placed on title covering the compulsory Level 2 & 3 landscape buffers 

located in the setback areas of each new complex or structure initiated under 

this bylaw. The covenants would ensure that these landscape buffers are 

properly maintained and that they remain compatible with the adjacent 

neighborhoods throughout the life of the associated structures. 

  

The Association recommends that the HD3 zoning bylaw is presented to 

Council within the auspices of a larger Comprehensive Development Bylaw 

that would include the existing HD1 and HD2 Bylaws. The benefits of doing 

this are: 

 

 The development boundaries of the Hospital Zone, as roughly 

outlined on the accompanying map, would be clearly defined: 

o HD1 -the hospital zone that includes the existing campus, the 

auxiliary building to the east of Pandosy, and the Royal parking 

lot. 

o HD2 – the planned development area to the east of Pandosy 

o HD3 – the areas described immediately north of the hospital 

campus. 

 The preamble and purpose of the Comprehensive Development 

Zoning Bylaw would clearly define the land uses acceptable within 

123



the entire zone and would dissuade applications for fast food outlets 

or drive-through pharmacies in the area. 

 The clearly defined comprehensive zone would encourage 

coordinated, long-term planning for parking and transit 

improvements. 

 The well-defined development of the zone would stabilize and 

encourage the current medical support offices existing or being 

developed in the Pandosy Village neighbourhood. 

 Coordination of the overall form and character of the area could be 

established along with the establishment of coordinated transition and 

buffer zones. 

 Future residential and commercial development in the designated 

areas in the south and south-east of the Pandosy and Mission areas 

would be forced to recognize and offer solutions to any further traffic 

congestion and transit problems that would develop within the 

Pandosy/Richter transportation corridor. 

 

The KLOCNA thanks you for allowing us to be involved in the development 

of this important bylaw. KLOCNA appreciates the opportunity to participate 

in neighbourhood planning discussions and sincerely hopes that this type of 

involvement continues throughout the process of the further redevelopment 

of the Pandosy corridor and the surrounding areas. 

 

Yours truly, 

 

O. J. (John) Mardall 

Vice President, KLO Central Neighbourhood Association 

#6 – 3775 Springbrook Road, 

Kelowna, BC, V1W 4A3 

mardall@telus.net 

250-762-4792 

 

124

mailto:Mardall@telus.net


Section 17 – Health District Zone 
 
17.3  HD3 –Health Services Transitional 
 
17.3.1 Purpose 
 

The purpose is to provide a transitional zone, including supportive and low-impact health 
service uses, from the Kelowna General Hospital campus to the established residential 
neighbourhood to the north and south. For those parcels identified on the boundary map, 
this zone will allow for small-scale health services that are generally compatible with 
residential land uses and capable of being located in a neighbourhood setting. Building 
design should reflect the scale and context of nearby residential areas as established in 
the Abbott Street & Marshall Street Heritage Conservation Areas Development 
Guidelines. 
 

17.3.2 Principal Uses 
 
17.3.2.1 The principal uses in this zone are: 
 

(a) boarding or lodging house 
(b) group home, minor 
(c) health services, minor 
(d) health services, major 
(e) single detached housing 
(f) supportive housing, minor 
(g) two dwelling housing 

 
17.3.2.2 The secondary uses in this zone are: 
 

(a) bed & breakfast home 
(b) carriage house 
(c) home based business, minor 
(d) secondary suite 

 
17.3.3 Subdivision Regulations 
 
17.3.3.1  The subdivision regulations for properties north of Kelowna General Hospital (fronting 

on Royal Avenue and Pandosy Street) are: 
 

(a) The minimum lot width is 13.0m. 
(b) The minimum lot depth is 30.0m. 
(c) The minimum lot area is 490m². 

 
17.3.3.2  The subdivision regulations for properties south of Kelowna General Hospital (fronting 

on Christleton Avenue and Pandosy Street) are: 
 

(a) The minimum lot width is 13.0m. 
(b) The minimum lot depth is 30.0m. 
(c) The minimum lot area is 490m². 

125



(d) The maximum lot area is 1800m². 

 
17.3.4 Development Regulations 
 

(a) The maximum floor area ratio is 0.5, except it is 1.0 for properties with a lot 
area of more than 1800m2. 

(b) The maximum site coverage is 50% and together with driveways and parking 
areas, shall not exceed 60%. 

(c) The maximum building height is the lesser of 9.5m or 2 ½ storeys, except it is 
4.5m for accessory buildings.  
Where parking spaces are provided totally beneath habitable space of a principal 
building providing that in all cases, the parking spaces are screened from street 
frontage view, the maximum building height is the lesser of 10m or 3 storeys, 
except it is 4.5m for accessory buildings.  

(d) The minimum front yard is 4.5m. 
(e) The minimum side yard is 2.0m for a 1 or 1 ½ storey portion of a building and 

2.3m for a 2, 2 ½ or 3 storey portion of a building. 
(f) The minimum rear yard is 6.0m except it is 1.5m for accessory buildings. 

 
17.3.5 Other Regulations 

 
(a) In addition to the regulations listed in this section, other regulations apply. 

These include the general development regulations of Section 6, the landscaping 
and fencing regulations of Section 7, the parking and loading regulations of 
Section 8 (except as specified by section 1.6 of this zone), and the specific use 
regulations of Section 9 of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000. 

(b) Level 2 landscape buffers are required for the side yards and Level 3 landscape 
buffers are required in the front and rear yard setback areas.  A visual screen is 
required along side or rear lot lines that are adjacent to a residential land use 
designation. The visual screen may consist of either vegetation or decorative 
fence or wall. The minimum height of the screen is 1.2m (at maturity for 
vegetation, planted at a minimum height of 1.0m high on a maximum spacing of 
900mm). 

(c) Vehicle-oriented or drive through services are not permitted in this zone. 
(d) All vehicle access must be from the rear lane, where a lane is present. 
(e) One non-illuminated Identification sign, as defined in the City of Kelowna Sign 

Bylaw No. 8235, which meets the following conditions is permitted per lot: 
i. 0.23m2 maximum area; 
ii. Placed within, flat against or hanging from the building; 
iii. For lots fronting on Pandosy Street, signs of this size and dimension may 

be hung from a free-standing post; and  
iv. The sign must be of high-quality materials in heritage colours, and 

consistent with the architectural style of the building.  
One non-illuminated Free-standing sign, as defined in the City of Kelowna Sign 
Bylaw No. 8235, which meets the following conditions is permitted per lot: 

v. 1.0m2 maximum area; 
vi. Maximum 1.5m above height measured from sidewalk elevation; 
vii. Minimum 1.0m setback from front property line; and 
viii. The sign must be of high-quality materials in heritage colours, and 

consistent with the architectural style of the building.  

126



(f) The maximum height of fences or landscape screening located in a front yard is 
1.0m. 

 
17.3.6 Design Guidelines 

The Abbott Street & Marshall Street Heritage Conservation Areas Development 
Guidelines form the basis of the Design Guidelines for those parcels within the Abbott 
Street Heritage Conservation Area. The following base guidelines shall apply to all 
parcels in addition to the Revitalization Development Permit Design Guidelines: 
 
(a) Built form should resemble a residential building design that disguises health 

services uses and is complimentary to the established residential character. 
(b) Maintain the established front yard setback by placing additions and new 

constructions within 10% of the adjacent or average building setback. 
(c) Rear setbacks may vary from the established pattern, within the limits of the 

Zoning Bylaw, to accommodate additions to the residential building footprint. 
(d) The massing of auxiliary buildings should be subordinate to the massing of the 

principal structure. 
(e) New construction or additions to existing structures are encouraged to maintain 

the established massing of the streetscape. 
(f) Larger buildings should use architectural design techniques to reduce the 

apparent massing and emulate the established neighbouring building massing. 
(g) Established block face building spacing, foundation height, proportion, wall to 

window/door ratio and setbacks of adjacent development are to be considered 
with new development or additions to existing buildings. 

(h) Roof form complexity, roof line silhouette, and the use of secondary elements 
(dormers, gables, chimneys, etc.) shall be consistent with the building style. 

(i) Low maintenance materials, of similar design to traditional materials, may be 
used for buildings not being restored to period authenticity. 

(j) Main entrances should be prominent from the street and are encouraged to 
adhere to the pattern of the established architectural style. 

(k) Front steps leading to the principal entrance are encouraged to be constructed in 
a style and of materials consistent with the established architectural style of the 
building. 

 

127



128



129


	Agenda
	3.1 2014 07 14 Report Z14-0019 260 Ponto Ave.docx
	3.1 2014 07 14 Attachments Z14-0019 260 Ponto Ave.pdf
	3.2 TA14-0007 Amendment to Carriage House and Accessory Building.docx
	3.2 2014 07 14 Attachments TA14-0007.pdf
	3.3 OCP11-0011 Z11-0069 TA11-0010 2755 McCurdy Rd.docx
	3.3 Attachments OCP11-0011 Z11-0069 TA11-0010 2755 McCurdy Rd.pdf
	3.4 2014 07 14 Report Z13-0030 South of Academy Way.docx
	3.4 2014 07 14 Attachments Z13-0030 South of Academy Way.pdf
	3.5 2014-07-14 - Report - Hospital Area Plan - Phase 1 Bylaws.docx
	3.5 Attachment 1 - List of Subject Properties.docx
	3.5 Attachment 2 - Map 1 Proposed OCP Map 4.1.pdf
	3.5 Attachment 3 - Map 2 Proposed OCP Map 5.8.pdf
	3.5 Attachment 4 - Map 3 Hospital Area Plan Study Area.pdf
	3.5 Attachment 5 - FRAHCAS Position Letter 2013-06-05.doc
	3.5 Attachment 6 - FRAHCAS and KSAN Position Letter 2014-04-12.doc
	3.5 Attachment 7 - KLOCNA Position Letter 2014-04-16.docx
	3.5 Attachment 8 - Proposed Health District 3 Zone.docx
	3.5 Attachment 9 - Development Engineering Memorandum.pdf

